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Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting
based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Jdune 27, 2003

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the
City Council of the City of Mason

We have audited the basic financid statements of the City of Mason, Ohio (the City), as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2003. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing sandards generaly accepted in the United States of
America, and the sandards applicable to financia audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Generd of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable asurance about whether the City’'s financid statements are free of
materid misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisons of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materid effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no ingances of non-compliance required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immateria instances of noncompliance
that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate letter dated June 27, 2003.

Internd Control Over Financia Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we consdered the City’ sinternd control over financid reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressng our opinion on the financia
statements and not to provide assurance on the internd control over financia reporting.

A materid weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the interna
control components does not reduce to a relatively low leve the risk that misstatements in amounts that
would be materid in relation to the financid statements being audited may occur and not be detected



within a timely period by employees in the normd course of performing their assgned functions. Our
congderation of the interna control over financia reporting would not necessarily disclose dl mattersin
the internd control over financia reporting that might be materid weeknesses. We noted no matters
involving the interna control over financid reporting and its operation that we consider to be materia
weaknesses. However we noted meatters involving the internd control over financid reporting that does
not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate
letter dated June 27, 2003.

This report is intended for the information of management, the Auditor of State and the Honorable City
Council of the City of Mason, Ohio and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Pattenburg & Associates, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants
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Finance

6000 Mason-Montgomery Road
Mason, OH 45040
513-229-8530

Fax: 513-229-8531

June 27, 2003

Honorable Mayor, Members of Council
and Citizens of Mason

We are pleased to present the City of Mason
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. While
there are no legal requirements for the preparation of
this report, it represents a commitment by the City of
Mason to conform to nationally recognized standards
of excellence in financial reporting,

The responsibility for both the accuracy of the
presented data, and the completeness and fairness of
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the city, particularly the Director of
Fiuance’s Office. This report is prepared in
conformance with generally accepted accounting
principles as set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
recognized authoritative sources. We believe the data
is fairly presented in all material aspects and that it is
presented in a manner designed to :
set forth the financial position and
results of operations of the city as
measured by the financial activity
of its various funds and account
groups; and that all disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to
gain a reasonable understanding of
the city's financial affairs have
been included.

This  Comprehensive  Annual
Financial Report incorporates
GASB Statement No. 34 — Basic

Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion

and Analysis for State and Local Governments.
Statement No. 34 was developed to make annual
financial reports of state and Iocal governments
easier to understand and more useful to those who
make decisions using governmental financial
information. This report reflects our continuing effort
to disserninate clear and useful financial information

vili

Mason Earth Walk, April 2002

to our users with the implementation of Statement
34.

The accompanying report consists of the following
three parts:

Introductory Section - introduces the report and
includes the table of conteats, this transmittal
letter, the city’s organizational chart, and a chart
of elected and appointed officials.

Financial Section — includes the report of
independent accountants, the management’s
discussion and analysis, the basic financial
statements, required supplementary information
and the combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules.

Statistical _Section - muiti-
year information reflects
social and economic data,
financial trends and the
fiscal capacity of the city.

For financial reporting
purposes, the city includes in
this report all funds, account
groups, agencies, boards, and
commissions that are controlled
by, or dependent on, the city
legislative branch. “"Controlled
by" or "dependent on" the city
is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing
authority, outstanding debts secured by revenues or
general taxing authority of the city, and/or the city's
obligation to fund any deficits that may occur.

--www.lmaginemason.org



HISTORY AND BACKGROUND

Mason has earned a reputation as a progressive,
innovative community. We are located in the
southwest portion of Ohio, 22 miles northeast of
Cincinnati and 30 miles south of Dayton. We are the
largest and fastest growing city in Warren County,
and Warren County is the second fastest growing
county in Ohio.

Originally settled as the village of Palmyra in 1815
by Major William Mason, the community was
renamed in his honor 20 years later. Incorporated in
1971, Mason is govermed by a city charter that
establishes puidelines for its operations. We are a
home-rule city with a council/manager form of
government. The legislative body of Mason consists
of a mayor and six council members who are
responsible for the legislative affairs of the city.
Council also makes appointments to various statutory
and advisory boards and appoints the City Manager,
Law Director, and Clerk of Council. As chief
executive officer, the City Manager is responsible for
enforcement of all laws and ordinances, the efficient
delivery of all city services, and preparation of capital
and operating budgets. The city provides many of the
municipal services normally associated with a
municipality, including emergency services; street
construction and maintenance; full engineering,
building, and planning services; recreation space and
activities; and business recruitment and retention.

In addition, water, sanitary sewer, stormwater, and
solid waste collection and disposal services are
provided under an Enterprise Fund concept, with
user charges set by City Council to ensure adequate
coverage of operating expenses and payments on
outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Mason has earned the reputation of being one of the
premier cities in the region. Considered to be part of
the Greater Cincinnati Metropolitan Area, it is
strategically located between the region’s two most
vital commerce cormidors, Interstates 71 and 75.
Nearly 2,700 acres are zoned high tech and
industrial, with more than 1,100 of that still available
for additional manufacturing and corporate office
development. Within 300 miles of Mason are 59% of
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the nation’s population, 59% of the nation's
purchasing power, 58% of the nation’s
manufacturing establishments, and 65% of the
nation’s manufacturing industries.

The city continues to attract quality companies that
are relocating or expanding. In choosing Mason,
companies cite prime location along the interstates,
availability of land for development within
established business parks, rising property values, the
established core of high-tech businesses, available
workforce, and an exceptional level of support and
services with a favorable business environment
widely promoted in the region. Tax incentives
targeting high-tech businesses and light industry are
strong inducements as well.

Since 1990, Mason has become home to numerous
national companies and has one of the region's
largest complements of intermational businesses. In
an effort to further enhance our foreign investment
strategy, the city joined the Greater Cincinnati
Chamber of Commerce Regional Marketing Partners
(RMP) group. Mason began a three-year commitment
in 2001 as one of eleven members—and only the
second city—to come together to make marketing
and recruitment decisions for the Greater Cincinnati
region. In 2002, this alliance facilitated extended
contact with national and international corporate site
selectors and brokers. In 2003, RMP will facilitate
the city’s presence at an international aerospace-
manufacturing trade show in Europe and a retention
visit to a Mason Swiss business pariner, Haag-Streit,
in Bern, Switzerland.

Mason’s industrial facilities employ an estimated
22,000 persons, close to the city’s nighttime
population of 22,016. Three of the 10 largest
employers in Warren County are located in Mason.
Mason’s 15 largest employers provide work for more
than 9,000 persons and generate more than $4.8
million annually in income tax revenue.

Luxottica Retail North American Corporate Headquarters
opened in December 2002



New investments in 2002 amounted to nearly $10
million as 120,000 square feet of new corporate and
industrial space were added, bringing over 250 new
jobs to the community. The year is highlighted by the
completion of both the Luxottica Retail North
American corporate headquarters and Intelligrated
corporate headquarters projects. These projects
represent over $50 million of new investment
reported at the end of the year 2001, and have
already realized over 1,000 new jobs in the city.
Several hundred more are projected within the next
three years from these two companies alone.

Mason's goals for economic development continue to
be met, not only with the attraction of business into
the city, but also with continned new investment
from existing businesses. The following projects
were Lhe largest new developments in the City of
Mason for 2002:

Corporate Investment (new capital & payroll)

Kadant, Black, Clawson $5,000,000
Best Supply (announced)  $3,200,000
Deerfield Manufacturing $2,665,000
Sleepcare Diagnostics $2,160,000

Growth and development in the City of Mason will
continue to exceed the normal and average growth of
the economy because of Mason's physical location,
developable terrain, municipal facilities, services and
utilities, and the progressive attitude and actions of
city council, administration, and citizens. The city’s
taxable property base and its economic base are
strong due in part to the quality of life, which has
attracted office development, industry, and citizens to
Mason. Mason will maintain its focus on having a
balanced tax base with viable commercial and
industrial businesses to complement a growing
residential base.

MAJOR INITIATIVES
For the Year 2002

Mason’s citizens are the city's greatest assets. There-
fore, in preparing each year's budget, our customers’
needs for services and the safeguarding of their en-
vironment in conformity with applicable federal and
state standards are the government's greatest concerm.
Mason’s success has been our ability to equitably
balance the needs of our residents and businesses.

Four major events occurred in 2002 that position the
city for future economic growth and improvement:

New Municipal Center

The new Municipal Center provides residents and
employees with a new city landmark while allowing
the city to better serve residents with a single service
window, greater accessibility, and consolidation of
most offices into one building. Planning for the new
120,000 square foot facility began in November
1999. The new facility cost approximately $18
million and was completed in September 2002.

Mason’s new Municipal Center as seen from the adjacent
city park. The center opened in Seprember 2002,

Stormwater Utility

Collections for a new Stormwalter Utility began in
October 2001 and has begun providing funds for the
over $8 million in stormwater projects on the city's
stormwater capital improvement list. Projects that
were started with these funds include Pine Hill Lake
Dam corrections and dam breach analysis; Davis Run
Flood Plain study;, Third Avenue storm sewer
project; First Avenue and Forest Avenue storm sewer
design; the Northeast Street storm sewer design; the
Cintas storm sewer; and several smaller storm sewer
replacements and culvert cleaning projects. In
compliance with Federal Phase II Stormwaler
Regulations, the city submitted its stormwater
management plan to the Ohio EPA in early 2003.

Transfer of Water Operations

Building upon a successful working agreement with
Greater Cincinnati Water Works (GCWW) that
began in 1999, the City of Mason has satisfied the
long-term needs for a plentiful supply of water at a
reasonable cost by transferring the entire operalions
of the city’s water system to GCWW. GCWW's



larger service area, economies of scale, and their
virtually unlimited supply of waler from the Ohio
River will allow them to provide long-term service to
Mason at a lower cost to customers than Mason
could have accomplished.

In November 2001, Council approved a 30-year
agreement with GCWW. The transfer of operations
was completed on March 1, 2002.

New Commurnity Center

The new $22 million Community Center promises to
become the community’s hub for recreational and
leisure activities for citizens of all ages. Through an
innovative agreement between the city and the
schools, the schools built the facility and the city
operates it. The center opened to the public on March
2, 2003. It offers a wide variety of programs,
activities, equipment and facilities.

T T L L T R =

The new Community Center opened in March 2003

Features of Mason's Community Center include:
e State-of-the-art fitness and weight areas
e Four-lane, 1/8 mile walking/jogging track
s 161,400-gallon leisure pool, including
interactive water playground, tot slide, lazy
river/vortex and three-story body flume slide.
25-meter competition pool
Gymnasium and field house
Child care facilities and services
Indoor playground
Arts and crafts studios
Senior center
Café
Meeling Rooms
Group exercise/fitness studio

Roadway Projects

Several roadway projects were completed in 2002,
including the $5.7 million widening of Mason
Montgomery Road from Tylersville Road to Church
Street; the $7.2 million extension of Tylersville Road
from U.S. 42 to Kings Island Drive; and the two new
traffic signals located on Western Row Road.

Looking Ahead to the Future

Accomplishments to look forward to include:

» the completion of two road improvement projects
totalling $3.5 million.

¢ water reclamation projects that include the
design of a new, larger-capacity plant; and sewer
projects that will eliminate 3 lift stations, provide
service to previously unserved areas of the city,
and expand capacity in some areas to meet
expected growth.

For a more in-depth analysis of the City’s current
economic condition, please see the Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) portion of the
report in the Financial section.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In developing and evaluating the cily's accounting
system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
intermal accounting controls. Intemal accounting
controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding (1) the safeguarding of
assets against loss from unauthorized user
disposition, and (2) the reliability of financial records
for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that the cost of internat control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived,
and that the evaluation of cost and benefils requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Controls

The City Charter grants the City Council full
authority over the financial affairs of the city. The
Charter requires that all funds of the city, except
funds made up of proceeds of bond issues, agency
funds and enterprise funds be budgeted. The city
manager is charged with the responsibility of
preparing the estimates of the annual budget and the
enforcement of the provisions of the budget as
specified in the budget ordinance. Upon adoption of



the annual budget ordinance by the Council, it
becomes the formal budget for city operations. The
level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which
expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriated
amounts) is maintained at the function level for the
General Fund, Street Fund, State Highway Fund,
Fire & Emergency Medical Services Fund, Water
Fund, Sewer Fund, and Waste Collection Fund. All
other funds are maintained at the fund Ilevel
Budgetary control is maintained by encumbering the
estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of
purchase orders to vendors. Department directors are
responsible for ensuring that purchase orders do not
exceed each year’s budgetary balances. As the
budget represents a guide to each year's expenses,
department directors have the ability to move money
between object codes within the same function. City
Council, through a reappropriation ordinance,
approves all transfers outside function levels. City
Council may authorize supplemental appropriations
for expenses that exceed original appropriation
amounts.

Financial reports, which compare actual performance
with the budget, are prepared monthly and presented
to the Council so the Council is able to review the
financial status and measure the effectiveness of the
budgetary controls. The city does maintain an
informal monitoring system to facilitate budgetary
control over proposed purchases. Essentially, the
system entails the use of monthly computerized
printouts which detail year-to-date actual versus
budgeted expenditures comparisons of the various
funds by budgeted line item. Encumbered amounts
lapse at year-end. However, encumbrances generally
are reapportioned as part of the following year's
budget.

Cash Management

The City of Mason adopted its investment policy on
September 23, 1996, with approval of Ordinance 96-
133. This city policy is guided in large part by State
Statute: Chapter 135 of the Chic Revised Code.

The primary objective of the city's investment
activities is the preservation of capital and protection
of investment principal. In investing public funds,
the city strives to maximize the return on the
portfolio and avoid assuming unreasonable risks. The
city's investment portfolio remains sufficiently liquid
to enable the city to meet operating requirements that

might be reasonably anticipated. The city diversifies
its investments to avoid incurring unreasonable and
avoidable risks regarding specific security types or
individual financial institutions.

All eligible financial institutions must meet the
requirements of the Uniform Depository Act which
requires the financijal institution to maintain a fuil
service facility located in the City of Mason and to
have a current Agreement for Deposit of Interim
Funds with the city.

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in
the various instruments detailed below:

Interest earned on investments in 2002 was
$1,101,843, of which $677,010 is accounted for in
the governmental funds and $424,833 is accounted
for in the proprietary funds.

Over the past twelve months, the city’s total retum
on investments (met of fees) was 2.25%. This
compares favorably with the most common industry
benchmarks: Star Ohio, 1.79% and Treasury Bills,
1.62%. The yields are monitored on a monthly basis
and when the point spread is sufficient to justify the
loss of immediate liquidity and the absence of
specific collateral pledged in the city's name, other
types of authorized investments, collateralized as and
if required, may be considered for the city’s
portfolio.

Risk Management

In September 1997, in an attempt to reduce insurance
cosls, the City of Mason joined a local joint self-
insurance pool, the Miami Valley Risk Management
Association (MVRMA), in lieu of reliance upon
conventional insurance.

The Miami Valley Risk Management Association
was formed in 1988 by a core group of Dayton, Ohio
area municipalities that possessed professional
administration, stable operations, and vnusually good
claims and loss experience. Since then, their
marketing committee has sought out cities with
similar characteristics. Currently, 16 other cities
share membership with the City of Mason. The
amount of each member’s annual contribution for
losses and operating costs is based upon a weighted
average computation which includes a four year
average of claims expenses and losses, population,
the number of full time police officers, the number of



other full-time employees, the number of titled
vehicles, net operating expenditures, and the
valuation of property requiring property damage
coverage. Since the claim/loss factor is more heavily
weighted than the others, cities that do well on loss
prevention and claims experience represent a smaller
portion of the overall risk factor and thus have lower
contributions. Cities with higher than average losses
will pay proportionately more for each year's loss
computations. The Association’s Kettering, Chio
office is staffed by a qualified full-time executive
director, claims manager, loss control manager, and
an administrative assistant. The Association has been
fully audited by Deloitte & Touche, is a certified not-
for-profit corporalion, has a tax exempt status, and
operates under bylaws and procedures established by
the governing board composed of one trustee from
each member city. A Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) is prepared each year by
the association.

When a claim is fled, the first $2,500 of each loss is
a deductible that is fully payable by the member city.
Each property claim in excess of $2,500 up to
$250,000 is paid by the pool, including the cost of
settlement and legal defense. Each crime c¢laim in
excess of $2,500 up to $15,000 is paid by the pool.
The limit is dependent on the type of claim, with a
maximum of $1,000,000 per occurrence. Each
casualty/liability claim in excess of $2,500, up to
$500,000, is paid by the pool, including the cost of
settlement and legal defense. As of December 31,
2001, the Association had current assets of
$6,199,382, total assets of $6,227,638, cument
liabilities of $3,643,395, and no long-term liabilities.

The Pool's overall loss experience has been excellent
since its inception in 1988. A synopsis of insurance
is presented in the Statistical Section (Table 14).

Independent Audit

This report includes financial statements and
supplemental schedules which have been audited by
Plattenburg & Associates, Inc., a firm of independent
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor’s report of
Plattenburg & Associates, Inc., specifies the scope of
their audit, the use of generally accepted auditing
standards and the conformity of generally accepled

accounting principles, and concludes that these
financial statements present fairly the financial
position of the city.

Certificate of Achievement

The accounting policies of the city conform to gen-
erally accepted accounting principles as applicable to
governments and as set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board {(GASB), the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

The Government Finance Officers Association
(GFOA) of the United States and Canada recognizes,
by awarding a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting, governmental
units that issue their comprehensive annual financial
reports substantially in conformity with the standards
developed by GASB.

The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious
national award, recognizing conformance with the
highest standards for preparation of state and local
government finance reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,
a government umit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive financial
report, whose contents conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of
one year only. Mason has been awarded the
Certificale of Achievement for the past five years.
We believe our cumrent report conforms to the
Certificate of Achievement Program requirements,
and it is being submitted to GFOA to determine its
eligibility for an award.
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June 27, 2003

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of-the
City Council of the City of Mason

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Mason, Ohio, (the City) as of and for the year ended December
31, 2002, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Mason, Ohio, as of December 31, 2002 and, the respective changes in financial
position and cash flow, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 27, 2003 on our consideration of the Cily's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit.



Required Supplementary Information

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information, listed in the
table of contents as required supplementary information, are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplemental information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Combining Financial Statements and Individual Fund Schedules

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements of the City, taken as a whole. The accompanying information identified in the
table of contents as combining statements and individual fund schedules is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Introductory and Statistical Sections

The information identified in the table of contents as the Introductory and Statistical
Sections is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements of the City. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion thereon.

%Z% OJW

Plattenburg & ociates, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants



City of Mason

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For The Year Ended December 31, 2002

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City of Mason's discussion and analysis of the annual financial reports provides a review of
the financial performance for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The City's total net assets decreased $16.5 million. Net assets of governmental activities
increased $12.1 million, net assets of business-type activities decreased by $28.6 million.

o The General Fund reported a net change in fund balance of ($2.4) million.

e The City transferred their water system to Greater Cincinnati Water Works. As a result, the
loss on disposal of capital assets of $37,195,088 is recorded as a special item.

* Business-type operations reflected operating income of $2.5 million.
USING THIS ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. These statements are presented so
that the reader can understand the City's financial situation as a whole and also give a detailed
view of the City's fiscal condition.

The statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities
of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Major fund financial
statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how
services were financed in the short-term as well as the amount of funds available for future
spending. The fund financial statements also look at the City's most significant funds with all
other nonmajor funds presented in total in one column.

REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the City as a whole begins with the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities. These reports provide information that will help the reader to determine if the City of
Mason is financially better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting
used by private sector companies. All current year revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.



These two statements report the City's net assets and changes to those assets. This change
informs the reader whether the City’s financial position, as a whole, has improved or diminished.
In evaluating the overall financial health, the reader of these financial statements need to take
into account non-financial factors that also impact the City's financial well being. Some of these
factors include the City's tax base and the condition of capital assets.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City is divided into two kinds
of activities.

« (Governmental Activities - Most of the City's services are reported here including police, fire,
strect maintenance, parks and recreation, and general administration. Income taxes, property
taxes, building permits and interest finance most of these activities.

e Business-Type Activities - These services include sewer, water, waste collection and
stormwater utilities. Service fees for these operations are charged based upon the amount of
usage or a usage fee. The intent is that the fees charged recoup operational costs.

REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

The analysis of the City's major funds is presented later in the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis section. Fund financial statemnents provide detailed information about the City's major
funds - not the City as a whole. Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants. Other
funds may be established by the Finance Director, with approval of council, to help control,
manage and report money received for a particular purpose or to show that the City is meeting
legal responsibilities for use of grants. The City's major funds are General, Fire and Emergency
Medical Service, and Government Center Reserve.

Governmental Funds - Most of, the City's services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps to determine whether there are more or less financial resources that can be
spent in the near future on services provided to our residents. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Proprietary Funds - When the City charges citizens for the services it provides, with the intent
of recapturing operating costs, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements will essentially match. Internal service funds are used to report activities that provide
services to the City's other funds and departments.



Fiduciary Funds - The City is the fiscal agent for the Dissolved Joint Fire District. All of the
City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities. We exclude these activities from the City's other
financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purposes.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

As stated previously, the Statement of Net Assets looks at the City as a whole. Table 1 provides a
summary of the City's net assets for 2002 compared to 2001.

Table 1
Net Assets
{(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Assets
Current And Other Assets $42.8 $56.8 $14.5 18.1 $57.3 $74.9
Capital Assets, Net 66.7 41.5 51.0 83.8 117.7 1253
Total Assets 109.5 98.3 65.5 101.9 175.0 200.2
Liabilities
Current and Other

Liabilities 17.2 17.7 0.8 1.1 18.0 18.8
Long-Term Liabilities:

Due within One Year 1.5 13 0.3 0.6 1.8 1.9

Due in More Than One Year 30.9 316 6.6 13.7 375 453
Total Liabilities 49.6 _50.6 1.7 15.4 573  _66.0
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Debt 36.0 19.1 443 69.7 80.3 88.8
Restricted:

Debt Services 2.0 2.6 0.0 0.0 2.0 2.6

Capital Projects 3.8 8.1 0.0 0.0 8.8 8.1

Special Revenue 64 2.0 0.0 0.0 6.4 20
Unrestricted _67 15.9 13.5 16.8 20.2 2.7
Total Net Assets $59.9 $47.7 $57.8 386.5 BlI177 $134.2

Total net assets of the City as a whole decreased $16.5 million. Net assets of the City's
governmental activities increased $12.1 million. The increase in net assets was mainly due to the
increase in met capital assets, which was from various street projects, such as Fairways al
Crooked Tree, Fairways at Pine Run and Greenbrier.



The net assets of the City’s business-type activities decreased $28.6 million from 2001. The
decrease in net assets is largely contributed to the decrease in net capital assets of the Water
Fund, which is discussed in detail in the Notes to the basic financial statements.

Table 2 shows the changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2002 and revenue and
expense comparisons to 2001,

Table 2
Changes in Net Assels
(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $2.5 $2.6 $75 8117 §10.0 35143
Operating Grants, Contributions 0.5 1.5 0.0 0.0 0.5 1.5
Capital Grants and Contributions 6.5 48 59 31 12.4 7.9
Total Program Revenues 9.5 8.9 13.4 14.8 22.9 237
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 5.1 5.0 0.0 0.0 5.1 5.0
Income Taxes 14,2 13.2 0.0 0.0 14.2 13.2
Grants and Entitlements 1.5 2.7 0.0 0.0 1.5 2.7
Investment Eamnings 0.7 1.6 04 1.0 1.1 2.6
Refunds & Reimbursements 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.0 03 03
Other Revenues 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0
Transfers-Internal Activities (0.6) (0.3) 0.6 0.3 0.0 0.0
Special Item 0.0 0.0 (31.2) 0.0 (37.2) 0.0
Total General Revenues 2t.4 22.5 (36.2) 13 (14.8) 238
Total Revenues $30.9 $31.4 ($22.8) $16.1 $8.1 $47.5
Program Expenses:
General Government $6.5 4.7 $0.0 $0.0 $6.5 $4.7
Public Safety 5.9 4.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 4.0
Leisure Time Activities 1.8 1.5 0.0 0.0 1.8 1.5
Community Development 0.9 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.5
Basic Utility Service 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2
Transportation & Street Repair 1.9 1.7 0.0 0.0 1.9 1.7
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1.7 1.3 0.0 0.0 1.7 13
Water 0.0 0.0 1.3 4.2 1.3 42
Sewer 0.0 0.0 2.9 2.8 2.9 2.8
Waste Collection 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9
Stormwater Utility 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.4 0.7 0.4
Total Expenses 18.8 13.9 5.8 83 24.6 222
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $121  $175  ($28.6) $7.8 (8$16.5) $25.3



Governmental Activities

Council is commended for promoting economic growth in Mason in 2002, as this economic
growth does increase the earnings tax base as well. Mason has continued attracting large-scale
employers to our city in the year 2002, thereby injecting the local economy with jobs and
increasing the City’s commercial tax base. The 1.00% income tax is the largest source of
revenue for the City. Revenues generated by the earnings tax represent more than 67% of the
City’s total general fund revenues. Since 1992, earnings tax revenue averaged an annual
increase of 17.0%. During 2002, when most communities were faced with budget cuts do to the
economic downturn of the economy, the City’s 2002 eamings tax revenues increased
approximately 9% over 2001 tax revenues.

Program expenses for 2002 were as follows:  General Government 34.6%
Public Safety 31.2%
Leisure Time Activities 9.6%
Community Development 4.6%
Basic Utility Service 0.3%
Transportation & Street Repair 10.2%
Interest and Fiscal Charges 9.5%
Total 100.0%

General Government include legislative and executive as well as judicial expenses. The level of
services provided to City residents continues to be very high. The City seeks to improve the
quality and efficiency of existing services as well as consider additional services. Leaf and brush
pickup, storm sewer projects, Christmas tree recycling, and agpressive street resurfacing
program, amenifies in the parks, and police and fire services all culminate into a full service city.
Services in the City of Mason have increased over the years and this has been accomplished by
the foresight of City Council and a good work force.

Business-Type Activities

The City's business-type activities include Water, Sewer, Waste Collection and Stormwater
Utility.

Water — In the early 1990’s the City began exploring several options for obtaining additional
supplies of water. This prompted by studies that projected that the Shaker Creek Aquifer, which
the City had relied upon as our water source, was not large enough to provide water to meet the
maximum demands that would be placed upon the system. The most cost effective method for
obtaining additional water was to contract with the City of Cincinnati’s Greater Cincinnati Water
Works (GCWW). In 1999, the City entered into an agreement with GCWW, for the purchase of
up to 5 million gallons of water each day. Residents living in the “South Service Area” received
their water from GCWW, although the City operated the system.



In 2000, once again recognizing a growing need for additional water in the South Service Area, the
City began discussions with GCWW to add a second connection. The result of those discussions
was a proposal for the entire operations of the water system to be transferred to GCWW, as part of a
retail water services agreement. The transfer was completed on March 1, 2002. As part of the
agreement GCWW will provide Mason customers with monthly billing services for water, sewer,
waste collection and stormwater utilities

The agreement between GCWW and the City of Mason became effective on March 1, 2002 and is
for a period of thirty years. Before the agreement became effective the City of Mason defeased
37,170,000 of Mortgage Revenue bonds, of which GCWW paid $3,800,000. All utility assets at the
effective date were transferred to GCWW for use in providing water services under the agreement.
GCWW will maintain and operate the water sysiem and be responsible for maintenance and repairs.
GCWW will collect and keep all revenues during the term of the agreement.

Since the City is effectively out of the water utility business and the capital assets of the water
utility are no longer producing revenue, they have been written off. To account for the transfer of

the water operations the City of Mason disposed of all capital assets, resulting in a special item loss
of $37.2 million.

The Water fund assets and liabilities remaining as of December 31, 2002 will be liquidated during
2003 and the Water fund will be closed.

Sewer — One of the primary tools used for such planning was the Wastewater System Master Plan,
generated in 1992 to give the City direction for the future and for meeting requirements set forth by
the Ohio EPA. As a result of this master plan, several improvements were made to the City’s water
reclamation facility and collection system. Flow rates were re-examined in 1997 and early 1998,
and indicated that service requirements had grown rapidly. The flows experienced at that time
prompted City Council to update the master plan.

The 1999 Wastewater Master Plan Update analyzed several alternatives for improvements to the
Water Reclamation Plant to allow for treatment of future flows. Projections were taken out to a
design year of 2020, with both short-term and long-range needs analyzed.

As the Utility Committee and City Council evaluated options to meet the City’s needs to the year
2020 and beyond, several alternatives were evaluated. Detailed cost/benefit analyses were done and
financial considerations were evaluated to ensure that the most effective and beneficial option was
taken on this important project.

The option, relocating the entire plant, offered numerous advantages to the City and its customers.
Annual operating expenses are lowest if a single plant is maintained, and a single NPDES permit
also reduces monitoring and compliance expenses while improving process control. A suitable
property would be large enough to allow room for additional expansions that may become
necessary in the future, would reduce the plant’s visibility, and would allow improved buffering
with adjacent properties.

In 2001, the City purchased, at a cost of $2,923,235, 102 acres just east of the City for the relocation
of the Water Reclamation Plant. In addition to the benefits cited above, it minimizes relocation
expenses because it would require only a small extension of the current plant’s existing trunk sewer
line. Relocating to the 102 acres would also save an estimated $3,000,000 in the future by removing
the need to build a lift station to serve the northem study area.
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In addition, in July 2001, Council authorized a coniract with Finkbeiner, Pettis & Strout, Inc., for
design services of the proposed plant relocation. Construction of the plant will begin in 2003 with
completion estimated in the Fall of 2004.

Waste Collection — The City confracts with Rumpke, a private organization, to provide waste
removal to residential, commercial and industrial customers in the City of Mason. In 1997, Council
authorized a one-year contract with four renewable years with Rumpke for Mason residents’ waste
collection. According to that contract the current rate of $11.00 per month was due to rise to
$11.70, in 2001. The City met with Rumpke officials to negotiate a more competitive renewal rate
in lieu of re-bidding the waste collection contract a year early.

In 2001, after several discussions with Rumpke, the City successfully negotiated a renewal rate of
$9.75 for the final year of the contract. The new rate is $.20 lower than the 1997 rate, and $1.95
less than the contractual renewal rate. Residents June 2001 utility bills reflected the rate reduction.

Stormwater - In growing cities like Mason, problems arise from uncontrolled stormwater runoff
and discharges. Flat terrain and an inadequate drainage system compound the problems associated
with heavy rains. The resulting stormwater accumulates in many areas of the city, causing nuisance
flooding and possible threats to public health and safety. Flooding is only part of the problem. The
higher quantities of runoff entering the major waterways within the city also increase the erosion of
creek banks, creating possible threats to public health and safety. The City has updated rules and
regulations to address many of the issues related to individual developments; however, the amount
of growth in the City requires a comprehensive approach to stormwater management throughout the
city.

City Council took the first step towards addressing these problems in November 1998 when a study
was authorized by the consulting engineering firm of Camp Dresser & McKee. As part of that
study, a Stormwater Advisory Committee (SWAC) comprised of Mason residents and business
representatives was established to assist the consultant and City Council in determining the desired
level of service to be provided by the stormwater infrastructure system. Based on their findings, the
SWAC in March 2000 presented their recommendations to create a new Stormwater Utility to the
City Utility Committee and City Council. The new utility will allow the city to address stormwater
problems associated with both the aging infrastructure located in the older portions of the city, as
well as the construction of new collection systems in the developing areas of the city. Revenues
from the Stormwater Utility will be earmarked specifically for Mason stormwater improvements.

To give further impetus to creating a storm water utility, the US EPA, on October 29,1999, issued
new stormwater regulations that require communities with populations under 100,000 to control
water poliution caused by stormwater runoff. Known as the EPA Phase II stormwater rule, these
regulations require communities to implement municipal stormwater programs that will reduce
stormwater pollutant discharges to the “maximum extent practicable.” The EPA has listed six
control measures that communities must implement as part of any municipal stormwater
management program. In addition to meeting the city’s current stormwater needs, the new
stormwater utility will provide staff with the tools necessary to meet the new regulation
requirements.



In April, Council authorized legislation to implement this new utility. Implementation .Of this
utility allows fees to be collected and used exclusively to address flooding problems and improve
water quality by reducing stormwater pollution.

By establishing a stormwater utility, the city is able to take a more aggressive approach to
stormwater management. The additional funds raised through the utility fee allow the city to
provide an increased level of system maintenance and repair, as well as enable the city to construct
additional capital improvement projects. Under the new utility, every homeowner, as well as
condominiums and apartments, pay a flat rate. Non-residential properties (including stores, city
facilities, industries, and churches) are charged by “equivalent residential units” (ERUs). An ERU
is equivalent to the impervious surface area of the average Mason residential property.

THE CITY'S FUNDS

Information about the City's major governmental funds is presented in the Fund Financial
Statements (See table of contents). These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. All Governmental funds had total revenues of $25.3 million and expenditures of $38.1
million. Within the General fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $5.7 million; and within (he
Fire and Emergency Medical Service Fund revenues exceeded expenditures by $1.1 million.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The City’s General Fund budget is formally adopted at the function level. Financial reports, which
compare actual performance with the budget, are prepared monthly and presented to the Council so

the Council is able to review the financial status and measure the effectiveness of the budgetary
controls.

As the City completed the year, its General Fund balance reported an actual fund balance of
$3,788,457, on a Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
Table 3
Capital Assets
(In Millicns)
Governmental Busingss-Type
Activities Activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Land $8.8 $8.8 $3.9 346 3127 %134
Building and Improvements 7.7 7.7 18.2 30.2 25.9 37.9
Machinery and Equipment 73 7.0 0.7 2.0 8.0 9.0
Infrastructure 11.8 4.7 32.9 50.5 447 55.2
Construction in Progress 36.2 17.3 ' 7.5 15.7 43.7 33.0
Accumulated Depreciation (5.2) (4.1} (12.1) (19.2) (17.3) (23.3)
Totals £66.6  $414 $1.1 3838 LTI 31252

The increase in governmental activities capital assets was the result of the City constructing a new
Municipal facility. The decrease in business-type activities capital assets is the result of transferring
the water system to Greater Cincinnati Water Works.
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Debt
At year-end the City had $7.7 million in unvoted general obligation and special assessment bonds.

Table 4
Outstanding Debt at Year End

Governmental Activity

2002 2001
Unvoted General Obligation Bonds:
Special Assessment Utility Bonds $55,000 $58,000
Various Purpose Special Assessment Bonds 963,000 1,121,000
Various Purpose General Obligation Bonds 6,690,000 6,240,000
Total $7.708,000  $7.419.000

Special Assessment Street Improvement Bonds will be paid with special assessment revenue.

The unvoted General Obligation Bonds for street improvement will be paid with municipal income
tax revenue. The Various Purpose Improvement general obligation bonds will be paid with property
tax revenues via transfers from the General Fund.

The City's overall legal debt margin was $82,626,957 at year-end.

Detailed information relating to capital assets and debt is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCE DEPARTMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial
information, contact the Finance Director, City of Mason, 6000 Mason Montgomery Road, Mason,
Ohio 45040,
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City of Mason
Statemenc of Net Asscrs
December 31, 2002

Asscts:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investnents
Restricted Cash and Investments
Receivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Interest

[nrergovammental

Loans

Spedal Asscsments
Dreferred Bond Issuance Costs
Inventory
Nandepreciable Capiml Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Total Assers

Liabilites:
Accounis PPayable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Retainage Payable
Accricd Interest Payable
Claims Payable
Deferred Revenue
Other Liabilides
General Cbligation Notes Payable
Long-Term Liabilities:
Duc Within One Year
Duc In More Than Ong Year

Total Liabilides

Ner Assers:
Invested in Capital Asscrs, Net of Related Debt
Rastricted for:
Debr Service
Capirl Irojecis
Special Revemuze
Unrssemicied

Total Nct Asscrs

See accompanying, notes.

Governmenl Business-Type

Activiics Actividos Toral
$21,662,654 512,945 240 $34,608,594
6,082 409 759,084 6,842,393
10,422 255 0 10,422,255
380,569 677,075 1,057,644
181,208 107,820 289,028
1,760,910 0 1,760,910
2,914 0 2914
1,734,305 0 1,734,305
543,354 0 543,354
58,552 1,699 60,251
45,031,396 11,456,897 56,488,293
21,680,645 39,580,792 61,261,437
109,541,171 65,530,207 175,071,378
620,319 420,650 1,040,969
685,530 63,751 749281
503,063 281,155 784,218
270,786 68,116 338,902
47,178 0 47,178
6,671,223 0 6,671,223
76,319 0 76,319
8,400,000 Q 8,400,600
1,454,485 275,545 1,730,030
30,901,384 6,551,349 37,452,733
49,630,287 7,660,566 57,290,853
36,025,545 44,347 689 80,373,234
2,041,350 0 2,041,350
8,783,906 o 8,783,906
6,410,602 0 6,410,602
6,649.481 13,521,952 20,171,433
§59,910,884 $57 869 641 $117,780,525
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Ciry of Mason
Starcment of Activitics
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 3], 2002

Program Revenucs
Charges for Operating Grants Capiral Grans
- Expenscs Services and Sales  and Conrributons  and Conuributions
Governmental Acavites:
General Government 56,529,294 $879,532 $0 $52,650
Public Salecy 5881818 358,177 113,839 0
Leisure Time Actvitics 1,817,847 434,532 2,000 o
Community Development 863,009 491,491 2914 34,049
Basic Uslity Scrvice 50,941 199,229 0 43,508
Transportation & Streec Repair 1,926,062 113,154 432478 6,328,292
Interest and Fiscal Chargs 1,780,444 0 0 o
Toral Governmenral Activitics 18,849 415 2,476,115 551,231 6,458,499
Business-Typc Activides:
Warer 1,290,013 477,771 0 2,316,228
Sewer 2,856,787 5,532,399 0 1,433,628
Waste Collcetion 882,229 786,572 ] o
Stormwater Urdlity 744,887 678,199 0 2,113,509
Total Business-Type Actvicics 5,773,916 7,474,941 0 5,863,365
Touls $24,623,331 §9.951,056 3551,231 $12,321 864
General Bevenucs:
Income Taxes
Property Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes
Special Revenue Purposes
Debt Service
Capial Prajects

Granes and Enndements not Resrricted o Spedific Programs
Jovestment Eamings

Refunds & Reimbursements

Orher Revenues

Transfers-Incarnal Acdvides

Special Trem

Total General Revenues & Transfers

Change in Net Assess

Ner Assers Bepinning of Year

Net Assers BEnd of Year

Sec accompanying notes.
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Met Asscs
Governmental Business-Type
Activitics Activitdes Towl
($5,597,112) 50 {55,597,112)
{5,409,802) 0 (5,409,802}
{1,381,315) 0 (1,381,315)
{334,555) 0 (334,555)
191,796 0 191,796
4,947,862 0 4,947 862
(1,780,444) 0 (1,780,444}
(9,363,570) 0 (9,363,570)
0 1,503,986 1,503,986
0 4,109,240 4,109,240
0 (95,657) {95,657}
0 2,046,821 2,046,821
0 7,564,390 7,564,390
{59,363,570) §7,564,390 (51,799,180}
14,236,939 0 14,236,939
1,209,868 0 1,209,868
3,265,998 0 3,265,998
471 560 0 471,560
171,456 H 171,456
1,482 935 0 1,482,035
683,584 424 833 1,108 417
317,067 0 317,067
215,054 o 215,054
(563,536) 563,536 0
0 (37,195 088) (37,195,088)
11,450,925 (36,206,719} (14,715,794)
12,127,355 (28,642,329) {16,514,974)
47,783,529 86,511,970 134,295,499
559,910,884 557,869,641 $117,780,525
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City of Mason
Balance Sheec
Governmental Funds
Decanber 31, 2002

Asscts:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments
Romicted Cash and Invesonanes
Reccivables:

Taxes

Accounts

Tnteresc

Intergovernmental

Loans

Speoial Assessmonts
Inventory

Toral Asses

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Arcounts Payable

Accrucd Wages and Benefies
Compensaled Absences

Remainage Payable

Accrued Interese Payable

Dreferred Revanuc

Other Liabilities

Goneral Obligadon Notes Payable

Tota] Liabilides

Fund Balanices:

Reserved for Encumbrances
Rescrved for Inventory
Reserved lor Dbt Scrvice

Unreserved, Undesipnared, Reporred in:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Debr Service Funds

Capitl Projects Funds
Total Fund Balanccs

Total Liabilite and Fund Balancs

Sec accampanying notes.

Other Tata)
Fire and Emergency Government Center Governmeneal Governmental
General Medical Service Reserve Funds Funds

$11,523,749 $2,173,112 5D 37,377,627 $21,074,488
0 o 5,500,340 582,069 6,082,409
6,088,975 3,064,320 0 468,960 10,422,255
203,159 151,958 0 25,452 380,569
101,281 18,033 6538 56,345 176,327
632,741 0 0 1,128,169 1,760,910
0 0 0 2,914 2,514
0 0 0 1,734,305 1,734,305 -

16,265 10,647 0 31,640 58,552
19,366,170 5,418,070 5,501,008 11,407,481 41,692,729
451 378 100,974 0 59571 611,923
547,014 126,976 4] 11,540 685,530
41,043 417 0 295 4].755
22916 0 415,800 64,347 503,063
147 608 0 0 ] 147 608
4,458,784 3,163,977 0 3,228,792 10,851,553
76,319 0 0 0 76,319
8,400,000 0 0 0 8,400,060
14,145,062 3,392,344 415,800 3,364,545 21,317,751
7,157,820 21,579 11,107 2,471,233 0,661,739
16,265 10,647 0 31,640 58,552

¢ 1] 1] 310 310
(1,952,977 0 0 0 (1,952,977}
o 1,993,500 0 3,770,341 5,763,841

0 0 0 305,471 305,471

1] 0 5,074,101 1,463,941 6,538,042
5,221,108 2,025 726 5,085,208 8,042,936 20,374,970
5§19,366,170 $5,418,070 §5,501,008 511,407,481 §41,692,729
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City of Mason

Recondliation of Total Governmental Fund Balance to
Ner Assers of Governmont Activitics

December 31, 2002

Total Govemmeneal Fund Balance $20,374 978

Amounts reported [or govanmental activities in che
statement of net assers are different becausc:

Capiral assers used in governmental acdvidies are nor finandal
rosaurces and therefore are not reported in the funds, 66,712,041

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expendicures and thercfore are deferred in the funds. 4,180,330

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the
costs of insurance 1o individual funds. The asscts and
liabilities of the internal scovice fund are included in
governmental actvites in the statcment of net assers. 537,473

In the starement of net assets, herest is acaued, wheros
in the governmental funds incerest is reported a5 a
liability only when it will require the use of currenc
financial resources. (123,178}

Some habilites, such as compensated absences, do not require
the use of current financial resources and therclore are not
reported a5 Kabilides in govammental funds. (546,791)

Deferred bond issuance cost assocated with long-term liabiliGes 543,354
are not reported in the funds,

Long-term liabilides, are not duc and payable in the curcent

period and therdore are not reported in the funds, {31,767,323)
Ner Asses of Govarnmenral Acuvitics §59,210.884

Sce accompanying; notes.
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City of Mason

Starcement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance

Govermnmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended Deeanber 31, 2002

R.evenucs:

Taxcs

Fines, Licenses 8 Pammics
Charges for Scrvieos
Tnvestment Eamings
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Other Revenues

Terl Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Salcry
Leisure Time Activitics
Community Development
Rasic Urility Scrvice
Transportation & Strect Repair
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Ex¢oss of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):

Proceeds of Long-Term Capiral-Related Debe

Transfers In
Translers (Qut)

Tatal Other Financing Sources {Uscs)
Nce Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year
Change in Reserve for Inventory

Fund Balance End of Year

See accompanying notes.

Other Total
Fire and Emorgeney  Government Center Governmental Governmental

General Medical Scrvice Rocrve Funds Funds
514,797,720 $3,265,993 50 §677,122 518,740,840
1,103,887 0 4] 322,199 1,426,086
234,431 334,991 0 256,912 826,334
388,344 29,534 668 258 464 677,010
1,738,667 30,248 0 930,746 2,699,661
1] 0 0 201,511 201,511
671,830 17,897 0 9,324 699,051
18,934.879 3,678,668 68 2,656,278 25,270,493
6,055 452 0 14 441136 1,764,749 22,261,337
3,139,769 2,287,852 0 91,398 5,519,019
2,129,899 0 0 0 2,129,899
860,047 0 0 860,047
47,302 0 0 47,392
1,871,144 0 0 3,504 889 5,376,037
0 299,488 565,000 388,000 1,252,488
158,487 37,930 1,106,798 473,379 1,776,594
14,262,194 2,625,270 16,112,934 6,222,415 39,222 813
4,672,685 1,053,398 (16,112,256} {3,566,137) {13,952,32H
N+ li] 0 680,000 680,000
1,348,694 1,800,000 1,671,798 7,799,150 12,619,642
{8,473,094) (1,958,599) 0 (2,749,166}  (13,180,859)
{7,124 400) {158,599) 1,671,798 5,729 984 118,783
{2,451,715) 894,799 (14,440 458) 2,163,847 {13,833,537)
7,656,558 1,120,280 19,525,676 5,867 437 34,169,951
16,265 10,647 0 11,652 38,564
$5,221,108 $2,025,726 $5,085,208 50,042,934 §$20,374978
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Cirty of Mason

Reconciliation of the Statcment of Revenucs, Expendiures, and Changes
in Fund Balance of Governmaneal Funds to the Statement of Activitics
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net Change in Fund Balance - Toml Govenment! Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activides in the
statement of acdvides are diffcrent because:

Governmental funds repart capiral outlays as expenditurs.
However, in the satement of activitics, the cost of those
asscts is allocated over thair sstimared uscfl lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capia
outlays exceeded depreciation in the currenc peried.

Governmental funds only repare the disposal of assets to the
extant procecds are received from the sale. In the statement
of activitics, a gain or loss is reported for cach disposal. The
amount of the procecds must be removed and the deduction
for the lass on the disposal of capital assers must also be

cecognized,

Revenues in the smtement of acrivibies that do not pravide
current (inancial resources arc not reported as reveuies in

the funds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmenial funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
tiabilities in the starement of net assers.

In the stacement of activities, interest is accrued, whereas in
povernment! funds, an interest expenditurc is reported when due.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activides,
such as cempensated abscnces, do not require the usc
of current finandial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activitics,
such as acerued wages and bencfits, do not require the use
of curreist financial resouress and therefore arc not reporeed
as cxpenditurcs in govammental funds.

The.internal service fund used by management to charge
the costs of insurance 10 individual funds is not reported in
the district-wide statement of activities. Governmeneal (und
expenditures and the related internal service fund revenues
ar¢ climinated. The net revenue (cxpense) of the intermal
service fund is allocared among the governmental activities.

Consumable inventory is reported using the purchase method
on a modified accrual basis, but is reporeed using the consumption
method for full acerual.

Procceds from debe issucs are an other financing sourcc in the Ffunds,
bue a debt issue inercases long-term liabilides in the smtement

of net asscts,

Delerred bond issuance cost associated with [ong-term Jabilities
are nat reported in the funds.

Change in Ner Asscrs of Governmental Activities

Scc accompanying, notes,

{513,833,537)

25,264,601

(9,829)

(128,158)

1,252,488

(3,850)

(19,679)

42,047

227,829

38,564

(680,000)

{23,121)

312!127,355
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Ciry of Mason
Statement of Neco Assets
Propricrary Funds
December 31, 2002

Assers:
Equity in Poolcd Cash and Investments
Restricred Cash and Invesoments
Recovables:

Accounss

Inrerese
Inventory

Torl Current Asscis

Nondepreciable Capiral Asscrs
Depreciable Capital Asscts, Net

Toml Asscrs

Liabilitics:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Bendits

Compensated Abscnces

Reuinage Payable

Acaued Interest Payable

Claims Payable

Long-Term Liabilities Due Within One Year

Total Current Lisbilitics

Long-Term Laabilities:

Compensated Absences

Bonds, Notcs & Loans Payable

Total Liabilides

Mt Assers;

Invested in Capital Assets, Ner of Related Diebt
Rosmicted for:

Unrestricted

Total Nt Assers

Scc accompanying notes.

Business Type Activitics -Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Total Acovitics-
Waste Stormwarer Business-Type Internal Scrvice

Water Sower Collection” Utilicy Activiies Fund
$766,677 $10,772.861 $311,338 $1,095,064 £12,945 940 £588,166
0 759,984 0 0 769,984 o
0 504,518 91,155 81,402 677,075- 1]
6,362 89,787 2,584 2,087 107 820 4,881
0 1,699 o 1] 1,699 ]
773,039 12,128 849 405,077 1,185,553 14,492,518 593,047
0 106,858,513 1] 598,384 11,456,897 1]
0 26,540,009 1] 13,040,783 39,580,792 0
773,039 49527371 405,077 14,824,720 65,530,207 593,047
130,792 209,281 72,856 7,721 420,650 8,396
] 55,596 o560 7,495 63,751 [+]
0 26,332 1] 1,213 27 545 0
170,595 110,560 1] 0 281,155 o
35424 32,692 0 0 68,116 0
0 0 0 0 0 47,178
3,000 245,000 0 1] 248,000 1]
339,811 679,461 73,516 16,429 1,109,217 55,574
0 52,788 0 1,561 54,349 0
52,000 6,445,000 0 0 6,497,000 0
391,811 7,177,249 73,516 17,990 7,660,566 55,574
0 30,708,522 0 13,639,167 44 347 689 0
381,228 11,641,600 331,561 1,167,563 13,521,952 537,473
$381,228  $42,350,122 5331561  §14,806,730  §57,869,641 $537,473
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City of Mason
Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Ncr Assets
Proprictary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended Deccmber 31, 2002

Opcrating Revenues:
Charges for Services

Total Opcrating Revenucs

Operating Expenscs;
Personal Scrvices
Contractual Services
Marcrials and Supplics
Depreciation

Other Expenscs

‘Total Qperating Expenses

Operating Income {Loss)

Non-Operating Revenucs {Expenscs):
Investment Eamings

Inicrest {Expensc)

Total Non-Operating Revenucs (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Contributions 8 Transfers
Capital Grants and Contributions
Transfers In

Transfers (Oux)

Special Irem

Change in Net Asscis

Net Assces Beginning of Year

Ner Assets End of Year

Sce accompanying nores,

Busincss-Typc Activitics -Enterprise Funds

Governmicntal
Toral Activities-

Waste Stormwater Business-Type Internat Service

Water Scwer Collection Urlity Activitics Fund
$477,771 $5,532,399 $786,572 $678,199 $7,474,941 §1,178,864
477,771 5,032,399 786,572 678,199 7,474,941 1,178,864
45,135 754,355 20,777 105,013 925,280 048,725
233473 523,045 854,783 142,014 1,753,315 0
69,834 275,716 3,607 18,746 367,903 0
214,932 866,647 H 475,771 1,557,350 0
284,155 33,782 3,062 3,343 324,342 0
847,529 2,453 545 882,229 744,887 4,928,190 048,725
(369,758) 3,078,854 {95,657) (66,688) 2,546,751 230,139
79,548 333,553 11,714 18 424 833 9
{442 484) {403,242) 0 0 (845,726) 0
{362,936) {69,689) 11,714 18 (420,893) 9
(732,694) 3,009,165 (83,943) (66,670) 2,125,858 230,148
2,316,228 1,433,628 (] 2,113,509 5,863,365 g
151,894 0 o] 525,000 676,894 0
(12,895) (100,463) 0 o (113,358) (2,319)
(37,195,088) 0 0 0 (37,195,088) 0
{35,472,555) 4,342,330 (83,943) 2,571,839  (28,642,329) 227,829
35,853,783 38,007,792 415,504 12,234,891 86,511,970 309,643
$38).228 §42,350,122 $331,561 314,806,730 557,869,641 5537,473
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City of Mason

Statemnent of Cash Flows

Proprictary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employess

Cash Payments to Supplicrs

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Paymeas from Other Funds
Payments to Other Funds

Nct Cash Peovided {Uscd) by Nonczpital Financing Activitics

Cash Flows from Capilal and Related Financing Aqivitics:
Payments for Capital Acquisitions

Dbt Principal Payments

Dbt Intercst Paymisnes

Debr Escrow Depaosit from GCWW

Net Cash Provided {Used} by Capital and
Relaed Financing Activitics

Cash Flows [rom Investing Activitics:
Eamings on Investments

Ner Cash Provided (Uscd) by Cash Flows from Investing Activilies
Nt Increase (Decreasc) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of Year

Recenciltation of Operating Income {Loss) to
Ner Cash Pravided (Used) by Openting Activities
Opcrating Income {Loss)
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Changes in Assers 8¢ Liabilities:
{Increasc) Dearcase in Reccivables
{Increasc} Decrease in Inventory
Increasc (Dearease) in Payables
Increase (Ierreasc) in Accrued Liabilitics

MNet Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitics

Schedulc of Noncash Capiral Activities:

During the fiscal year, the Water, Sewer and Stormiwater Funds reccived $2,316,228, 51,433,628 and §2,113,509, respectively,

of capiral asseis contributcd.

Scc accompanying notes.

Business-Type Acuvitics -Enterprise Funds

Governmenial
Taral Acriviries.

Wastc Stormiwaler Business-Type  Intemal Service

Water Sewer Calleczion Uiliry Activities Fund
$961,604  $5676,639 $860,178 $737,670 $8,236,091 $1,178,864
(118,318} {728,748} (24,4203 (98,0862} (969,548} {955,816)
(953,328} {695,712} (856,144} {156,382} {2,661,566) 0
(110,042) 4,252,179 (20,386) 483,226 4,604,977 223,048
4,557,094 628,356 0 525,000 5,710,450 0
(4,421,095) (728,819} 0 0 (5,149,914) (2,319)
135,999 (100,463) 0 525,000 560,536 2,319
(1,231,719) {2,279,133) 0 (595,338) (4,106,190) 0
(7,170,000 (230,000) 0 0 {7,400,000) 0
{266,820) (404,228) 0 0 (671,048) 0
3,800,000 0 0 0 3,800,000 0
(4,868539)  (2,913,361) 0 (595,338) {8,377,238) 0
174,755 370,515 13,502 300 559,072 174
174,755 370,515 13,502 300 559,072 174
{4,667,827) 1,608,870 {6,884} 413,188 (2,652,653) 220,903
5,434,504 9,923,975 318,222 681,876 16,358,577 367,263
766,677 11,532,845 311,338 1,095,064 13,705,924 588,166
{369,758) 3,078,854 (95,657) (66,688) 2,546,751 230,139
214,932 866,647 0 475,771 1,557,350 0
483,833 144,240 73,606 59,471 761,150 0
3,021 106,037 o 1] 13,058 1]
(368,887) 126,794 5,308 7,721 (229.064) (7,091)
{73,183} 25,007 {3,643) 6,951 (44, 268) 0
(S110,042)  54252,179 (520,386) §483,226 §4,604,977 $223,048
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Ciry of Mason
Statement of Fidudary Net Asscts

Fidudary Funds
December 31, 2002
Agency
Asscts:
Restricred Equity in Pooled Cash and Investmnents 519,827
Torl Assets §19.827
#—
Liabilides:
QOther Liabilities 19,827
Toml Liabilities $19.827
o ————

Sce accompanying notes,
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City of Mason

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2002

1. DESCRIPTION OF THE CITY AND REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Mason, Ohio (the “City”) was incorporated in 1815, adopted its Charter in 1969 and
became a city in 1971. The City is a home-rule municipal corporation created under the laws of
the State of Ohio. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government.

Reporting Entity

A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other
organizations that are included to ensure that financial statements are not misleading. The
primary government of the City consists of all funds, departments, boards and agencies that are
not legally separate from the City. For the City, this includes; police and fire, parks and
recreation, planning, zoning, community development, sireet maintenance, water, sewer and
waste collection. Council and the City Manager have direct responsibility for these activities.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable.
The City is financially accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of
the organization’s governing board; and (1) the City is able to significantly influence the
programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the City is legally entitled
to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the City is legally obligated or has
otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to,
the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organizations. Component units may
also include organizations for which the City authorizes the issuance of debt or the levying of
taxes, or determines the budget. There are no component units included as part of this report.

The Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc. (MVRMA) is a risk sharing insurance
pool established for the purpose of enabling the subscribing political subdivisions to obtain
liability insurance and providing a formalized, jointly administered self-insurance fund for its
members. The members formed a not-for-profit corporation known as Miami Valley Risk
Management Association, Inc. for the purpose of administering the pool. The subscribing
members of the self-insurance pool include the Cities of Beavercreek, Blue Ash, Indian Hili,
Kettermg, Madeira, Mason, Miamisburg, Montgomery, Sidney, Springdale, Tipp City, Troy,
Vandalia, West Carrollton, Wilmington and Wyoming. The City has no explicit and measurable
equity interest in MYRMA and no ongoing financial responsibility for MVRMA..
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to local governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial principles. The City also applies Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989,
to its governmental and business-type activities and to its proprietary funds provided they do not
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The most significant of the City’s
accounting policies are described below.

Basis ol Presentation

The City’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide
a more detailed level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City
as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the primary government,
except for fiduciary funds. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to avoid
“doubling up” revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish between those activities of
the City that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the City at year-end. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of
the City’s govemnmental activities and for the business-type activities of the City. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department and
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid
by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and
interest earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program.
Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of
the City, with certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program
revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or govemmental function is
self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities
in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.
Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this
more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is
on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The internal service fund is presented in a
single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements. Fiduciary fiunds are reported by

type.
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Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is defined as a
fiscal and accounting entity with a self balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of
funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental
fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are the City's major
governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the
City for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the charter of the
City and/or the general laws of Ohio.

Fire and Emergency Medical Service Special Revenue Fund — This special revenue fund
accounts for expenditures of property tax revenues and other resources in the operation of
the City’s Fire Department.

Government Center Reserve Capital Projects Fund - This capital projects fund accounts
for expenditure of debt proceeds to construct a new Government Center.

The other governmental funds of the City account for grants and other resources that are
generally restricted to use for a particular purpose.

Propnetary Funds

Proprietary fund reporting focuses on changes in net assets, financial position and cash flows.
Proprietary funds are classified as either enterprise or internal service.

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a
fee is charged to external users for goods or services. The following are the City’s major
enterprise funds:

Water Fund - The water fund accounts for the provision of water treatment and
distribution to its residential and commercial users located within the City. On March
1, 2002 the City of Mason transferred the water system to the City of Cincinnati.

Sewer Fund - The sewer fund accounts for the provision of sanitary sewer service to
the residents and commercial users located within the City.
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Waste Collection Fund - This fund accounts for the waste collection operations.

Stormwater Utility Fund — This fund accounts for provision of stormwater systems
within the City.

Internal Service Funds - Internal service funds account for the financing of services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The City’s internal service fund reports on a self-insurance
program for certain employee benefits,

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The fiduciary fund
category is split into four classifications: agency funds, pension trust funds, investment trust
funds and private-purpose trust funds. On September 30, 1998 the Mason Deerfield Joint
Fire District was dissolved. As the surviving entity, the City of Mason assumed the
responsibility for all final affairs of the District. This fund was established to account for the
assets and liabilities of the District. The City’s Dissolved Joint Fire District Agency Fund is
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of
operations. Trust funds are used to account for assets held under a trust agreement for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to
support the City’s own programs. The City currently has no trust funds.

Measurement Focus

Govemment-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City are
included on the Statement of Net Assets.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.¢., revenues and other financing sources)
and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the povernment-
wide financial statements are prepared. Govemmental fund financial statements therefore
include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of
changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in
total net assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the City
finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.
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Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and
reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using
the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of
accounting.  Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrual basis of accounting.
Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of deferred revenue and in the presentation of expenses versus
expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange iransactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a
modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are
measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be collecied
within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the City, available means expected to be
received within sixty days of year-end.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include income taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On
an accrual basis, revenue from income taxes is recognized in the period in which the income
is earned. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for which the taxes are
levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year
when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide local
resources o be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the
resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from nonexchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at year-end: income tax, state-levied locally shared taxes

(including gasoline tax), fines and forfeitures, interest, grants and fees.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied.

Property taxes for which there is an enforceable legal claim as of the current year-end, but
which were levied to finance future operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue.
Special assessments not received within the available period and grants and entitlements
received before the eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue.
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On governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the
available period have also been reporied as deferred revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are penerally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations
of cost, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management the City’s cash and investments are pooled. Monies for all funds,
except cash and investments held in segregated accounts, are maintained in this pool. Individual
fund integrity is maintained through City records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as
*“equity in pooled cash and investments” on the balance sheet.

Investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted market prices, with the exception
of nonparticipating repurchase agreements, which are reported at cost. For investments in open-
end mutual funds, fair value is determined by the fund’s share price.

The City has segregated bank accounts for monies held separate from the City's central bank
account. These interest-bearing depository accounts are presented on the statement of net
assets/balance sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents in Segregated Accounts”.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows and for presentation on the statement of net
assets/balance sheet, investments with an original maturity of three months or less and
investments of the cash management pool are considered to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

On govemment-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or
market on a first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost while
inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is
determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable
supplies held for consumption. The cost of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in the
governmental fund types when purchased. Inventories of the proprietary funds are expensed
when used.
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Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the govemmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets
utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the
government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective proprietary funds.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions
and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as
of the date received. The City’s infrastructure consists of bridges, culverts, curbs, sidewalks,
storm sewers, streets, and water and sewer lines. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an
asset’s life are not.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
Useful lives for infrastructure were estimated based on the City’s historical records of necessary
improvements and replacement. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 25-50 years 25-50 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-20 years 5-20 years
Infrastructure 35-50 years 35-50 years

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, long-term interfund loans are classified as “advances to/from other
funds” on the balance sheet and are equally offset by a fund balance reserve account which
indicates that they do not constitute available expendable resources. These amounts, as well as
any short-term interfund balances, are eliminated in the governmental and business-type
activities columns of the statement of net assets, except for any net residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

Compensated Absences

The City reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB No. 16,
"Accounting for Compensated Absences.” Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the
benefits are eamed if the employees' rights to receive compensation are attributable to services
already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the
benefits through paid time off or some other means.
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Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability includes the
employees who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those that the City has
identified as probable of receiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated
sick leave and employee wage rates at fiscal year end taking into consideration any limits
specified in the City's personnel manual.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the govemment-wide financial
statements,

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that
is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. These amounts
are recorded in the account "compensated absences payable" in the fund from which the
employees who have accumulated leave are paid. The noncurrent portion of the liability is not
reported. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund
liability.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide
financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from
proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are reporied as obligations of the
funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, and contractually required
pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds, capital leases and long-term loans are recognized as a liability on the fund financial
statements when due.

Fund Balance Reserves

The City reserves those portions of fund balance which are legally segregated for a specific
future use or which do not represent expendable resources and therefore are not available for
appropriation or expenditure. As a result, encumbrances, inventories, advances and notes
receivable are recorded as a reservation of fund balance.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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The City applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the
proprietary funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or
service that is the primary activity of the fund.

Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in proprietary fund financial staiements arise from outside contributions
of fixed assets, tap-in fees to the extent they exceed the cost of the connection to the system, or
from grants or outside contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and
construction.

Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements
are reported in the same manner as general revenues.

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating
revenues/expenses in proprietary funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that inilially paid for them are not presented on the financial
staterments.

Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or evenfs that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in
occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the City
Administration and that are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash resources of several individual funds are combined to form a pool of cash and investments.
Each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as “Equity in
Pooled Cash and Investments.” .

Statutes require the classification of funds held by the City into three categories.

Category 1 consists of “active” funds — those funds required to be kept in “cash” or “near cash”
status for immediate use by the City. Such funds must be maintained either as cash in the City
Treasury or in depository accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable
order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts.

Category 2 consists of “inactive” funds — those funds not required for use within the current two-
year period of designation of depositories. Inactive funds may be deposited or invested only as
certificates of deposit maturing no later than the end of the current period of designation of
depositories.

Category 3 consists of “interim” funds — those funds not needed for immediate use but needed
before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim funds may be
invested or deposited in the following securifies:

» United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United States treasury or any other obligation guaranieed as to principal or interest by the
United States;

¢ Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
govemment agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal national
mortgage assoclation, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home
loan mortgage corporation, government national mortgage association, and student loan
marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal
government agencies or instrumentalities;

+ Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market
value of securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of
the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of
the agreement must not exceed thirty day;

¢ Interim deposits in eligible institutions applying for interim funds;

¢ Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

» No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in
the first two bullets of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described in this division are made

only through eligible institutions, and;

e The State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio).
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Ohio Law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loan associations
located in Ohio. Any public depository with which the City places deposits must pledge as
collateral eligible securities of aggregate market value equal to the excess of deposits not insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The sccurities pledged as collateral are
pledged to a pool for each individual financial institution in amount equal to at least 110% of the
carrying value of all public deposits held by each institution. Obligations that may be pledged as
collateral are limited to obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of any
state, county, municipal corporation or other legally constituted authority of any other state, or
any mstrumentality of such county, municipal corporation or other authority. Deposits
collateralized by investment pools are classified as Category 3 deposits per GASB Statement No.
3.

The GASB has established risk categories for deposits and investments as follows:

Deposits:
Category 1  Insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or by its agent in
the City’s name.

Category 2 Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent but not in the City's name.

Investments:
Category 1  Insured or registered, with securities held by the City or its agent in the
City’s name.

Category2  Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s
trust department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

A. Deposits
At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $929,922 and the bank balance

was $1,616,708. Federal Depository Insurance covered $100,000 of the deposits and bank
balance. All remaining deposits were classified as Category 3.
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B. lovestments

The City’s investments at year end are summarized below:

Carrying Value/
Cateporized Investments Category 1 Fair Value
U.S. Agencies $38,729,836 $38,729,836
Money Market(1) 0 1,811,056
38,72 54 2

(1) Investment is not categorized because it is not evidenced by securities that exist in
physical or book entry form.

4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at year end, consisted primarily of municipal income taxes, property and other taxes,
intergovernmental receivables arising from entitlements, shared revenues, special assessments,
accrued interest on investments, accounts and loans receivable.

No allowances for doubtful accounts have been recorded because uncoliectible amounts are
expected to be insignificant.

Special assessments expected to be collected in more than one year amounts to approximately
$1,532,795 in the Special Assessments Bond Retirement Fund.

Property Taxes

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible personal
property located in the City. Property tax revenue received during 2002 for real and public
utility property taxes represents collections of the 2001 taxes. Property tax payments received
during 2002 for tangible personal property (other than public utility property) is for 2002 taxes.

2002 real property taxes are levied afier October 1, 2002, on the assessed value as of January 1,
2002, the lien date. Assessed values are established by State law at 35 percent of appraised
market value. 2002 real property taxes are collected in and intended to finance 2003 operations.

Public utility tangible personal property currently is assessed at varying percentages of true
value; public utility real property is assessed at 35 percent of true value. 2002 public utility
property taxes became a lien December 31, 2001, are levied after October 1, 2002, and are
collected in 2003 with real property taxes.

2002 tangible personal property taxes are levied after October 1, 2001, on the value as of

December 31, 2001. Collections are made in 2002. Tangible personal property assessments are
25 percent of true value.
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The assessed values of real and tangible personal property upon which current year property tax
receipts were based are as follows:

Real Property $683,142,740
Public Utility 14,667,310
Tangible Personal Property 149,946,460
Total Valuation - $847,756,510

Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. The first payment is due January 20
with the remainder payable by June 20.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single
county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due April 30;
if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due April 30; with the remainder payable by
September 20.

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in the county,
including the City. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion of the taxes
collected. Accrued property taxes receivable represent real and tangible personal property taxes,
public utility taxes and outstanding delinquencies which are measurable as of year end for which
there is an enforceable legal claim. Although total property tax colleclions for the next year are
measurable, amounts to be received during the available period are not subject to reasonable
estimation at year end, nor were they levied to finance current year operations. The receivable is
therefore offset by deferred revenue.

Income Taxes

The City levies a one percent income tax on substantially all income eamed within the City. If
an individual pays income taxes to another municipality, a credit of up to one-half percent is
allowed. Additional increases in the income tax rate require voter approval.

Employers within the City withhold income tax on employee compensation and remit at least
quarterly. Corporations and other individual taxpayers pay estimated taxes quarterly and file an
annual declaration.

. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. In 1988, the City
joined the Miami Valley Risk Management Association, Inc. (MVRMA) a risk sharing insurance
pool. The pool consists of sixteen municipalities who pool risk for property, crime, liability,
boiler and machinery and public official liability. The City pays an annual premium to MVRMA
for this coverage. The agreement provides that the MVRMA will be self-sustaining through
member premiums and excess insurance. The deductible per occurrence for all types of claims is
$2,500. The joint insurance pool will cover additional claims up to $500,000 for liability,
$250,000 for property and $5,000 for boiler and machinery.
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Excess insurance coverage will cover additional claims up to the limits listed below:

General Liability
(including Police Professional Liability) $10,500,000 per occurrence

Automobile Liability £10,500,000 per occurrence
Public Officials Liability $500,000 excess ($500,000 Aggrepate)
$10M in excess $1M ($10M Apggregate per city)
Boiler and Machinery $100,000,000 per occurrence
Property $100,000,000 per occurrence
Flood (Property) $25,000,000 annual aggregate (excludes Zone A)
$500,000 annual aggregate (Zone B and Shaded X)
Earthquake (Property) 325,000,000 annual aggregate

There has been no material change in this coverage from the prior year. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

The City has a group health insurance program for employees and their eligible dependents.
Premiums are paid into an internal service fund by all funds having compensated employees
based on an analysis of historical claims experience, the desired fund balances and the number of
active participating employees. The monies paid into the Self Insurance Fund (internal service
fund) are available to pay claims and administrative costs. The plan is administered by a third
party administrator, Anthem Benefit Administration, Inc., which monitors all claim payments.

The claims liability of $47,178 reported in the fund at year end based on the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information
prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has
been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. Changes in the fund’s claims liability amounts were as follows:

Current
Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Liability Estimates Payments Year-End
2001 $115,167 $1,025,061 ($1,077,563) 362,065
2002 62,665 933,238 (948,725) 47,178
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capita) asset activity for the current year end was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, not being
depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net

Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, net

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in Progress
Total Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure

Total Capital Assets, being depreciated

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
$8,846,957 b 0 5 0 $8,846,957
17.328.107 19,579,241 (722.909) 36,184,439
26,175.064 19,579,241 (722 .909) 45,031,396
7,715,067 7,755 0 7,722,822
7,000,702 458,254 (126,229) 7,332,727
4,671,514 7,139,541 0 11,811,055
19,387.283 7.605.550 {126.229) 26,866.604
(1,017,464) (214,877 0 (1,232,341)
{2,709,857) (662,270) 76,758 (3,295,369)
(377,757 (280,492) 0 {658.249)
{4.105.078) {1.157,639) 76,758 (5,185.959)
15,282,205 6447911 (49.471) 21,680,645
$4,629,969 % 0 ($701,100) $3,928,869
15,678,315 3,801,641 (11.951.928) 7.528.028
20,308,284 3,801,641 (12,653,028) 11.456.897
30,220,488 0 (12,051,658) 18,168,830
2,028,195 289,810 (1,663,436) 654,569
50453.111 14,100,960 (31,647.806) 32,906,265
82,701,794 14,390,770 _(45.,362,900) 51,729.664
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Less Accurnulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Improvements (5,342,700) (659,886) 2,213,152 (3,789,434)
Machinery and Equipment (1,129,421) (339,627) 1,002,422 (466,626)
Infrastructure {12,702.453) (1.802,993) 6,612,634  (7,892,812)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (19.174,574) (2,802,506} 9,828,208 (12,148,872)

Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net 63,527,220 11,588,264 _(35,534,692) 39,580,792

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net $83,835,504  $15,389,905 (348.187,720) $51,037,689

The City of Mason is applying the transition provisions for General Infrastructure Assets (sireets,
curbs, sidewalks, bridges and culverts) for the current year-end. The City is reporting the current
year additions for General Infrastructure Assets and not including any General Infrastructure
Asset Additions before January 1, 2001. The City decided not to use the modified approach for
reporting General Infrastructure Assets.

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General Government 3 66,952
Public Safety 466,285
Leisure Time Activities 157,263
Community Development 2,962
Transportation & Street Repair 464,177
31,157,639
. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Accumulated Unpaid Vacation

City employees earn vacation leave at varying rates based upon length of service, subject to
certain maximum accruals. In the event of a termination of employment, death, or retitement,
employees (or their estates) are paid for unused vacation leave.

Accumulated Unpaid Sick Leave
The City of Mason does not permit advancement of moneys on sick leave accrued.
Sick Leave Conversion at Retirement

a. Upon retirement, a full-time, regular employee who meets the age and length of service
requirements of the Public Employees Retirement System or the Police and Fireman's
Disability and Pension Fund, whichever is applicable, and who was also in the service of the
City of Mason for a period of ten (10) continuous years prior to retirement from the service
of the City of Mason may redeem his or her accumulated sick leave providing all other
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8.

b. Redemption shall be at a rate of three (3) accumulated sick leave days exchanged for one (1)
day of pay with a maximum redemption limited to one hundred twenty (120) days.

¢. Payment will be based on the employee's base rate of pay at the time of retirement.

d. The conversion of sick leave to cash will be made as a lump sum payment and will eliminate

all sick leave credit accrued by the employee.

NOTES PAYABLE

A summary of the note transactions for the current year end are as follows:

Ending
Retired Balance

($1,300,000)  $1,150,000

(800,000) 0
(1,550,000) 1,400,000
(6.000,000) 5,850,000

Beginning
Balance Issued

General Fund:

4.65% Land Acquisition Note $1,300,000 $1,150,000

4.65% Heritage Qak Park Note 800,000 0

3.30% Road Improvement Note 1,550,000 1,400,000

3.30% Road Improvement Note 6,000,000 5,850,000
Total General Fund $9,650,000 38,400,000

(39,650,000)  $8,400,000

All of the notes are bond anticipation notes, are backed by the full faith and credit of the City,
and mature within one year. The note liability is reflected in the fund which received the

proceeds.

LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in bonds and other long-term obligations of the City during the current

year, follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance Dne Year
Governmental Activities

General Obligation Bonds
9.00% Civic Center Building $ 65,000 : 0 ($35,000) % 30,000 § 30,000
9.00% Real Eslate — Library Sile 20,000 0 (10,000} 10,000 10,000
4.47% Road lmprovement 4,420,000 0 (185,000} 4,235,000 190,000
5.30% Tax Increment Financing 600,000 0 0 600,000 - 0
5.25% Central Parke TIF 1,135,000 0 0 1,135,000 0
6.00% Enterprise Parke TIF 0 680,000 0 680,000 0
Total General Obligation Bonds 6,240,000 680,000 {230.000) 6,690,000 230,000
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Special Assessment Bonds
6.75% Northeast
6.76% Snider Road
13.50% Bethany Road #1
11.25% Taft

9.50% Western Row Road Widening

9.75% Bethany Road #2

10.75% Mason-Montgomery Road

8.75% Waterpark Drive — Beach
7.78% Lindemann C.G.
7.38% Route 741

Total Special Assessment Bonds
Capital Leases
Compensated Absences

Tolal Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Special Assessment Bonds
6.00% Diley Utility

Mortpage Revenue Bonds
6.75% Water Mortgage Revenue

5.80% Water Mortgage Revenue
5.85% Sewer Mortgage Revenue

Total Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Compensated Absences

Total Business-Type Activities

550,000 0 (55,000) 495,000 55,000
150,000 0 (15,000} 135,000 15,000
2,000 0 (2,000} 0 0
10,000 0 (10,000) 0 0
25,000 0 (10,000) 15,000 15,000
8,000 0 (4,000) 4,000 4,000
4,000 0 (1,000) 3,000 1,000
140,000 0 (35,000) 105,000 35,000
12,000 0 (1,000) 11,000 2,000
220,000 ] {25,000} 195,000 20,000
1.121.000 0 {158,000) 963,000 147,000
24,978 811 0 (B64,488) 24,114,323 860,162
531,494 57,052 0 588,546 217,323
$32,871.305 8737,052 ($1,252,488) $32,355,869 31454485
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year
$58.000 3 0 {$3.000) $55,000 $3,000
2,300,000 0 (2,300,000) 0 0
4,870,000 0 {4,870,000) 0 0
6,920,000 D {230.000) 6,690.000 245.000
14,090,000 0 {7.400.000) 6,690,000 245.000
107,169 0 (25,275} 81,894 27.545
314,255,169 g0 (37428275 $6826894 $275,545

Principal and interest requirements to retire the City’s long-term obligations outstanding at year

end are as follows:

General Special Mortgage
Year Ending Obligation Bonds Assessment Bonds Revenue Bonds
December 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $230,000 $318,555 $150,000 $72,568 $245,000 $392,295
2004 245,000 307,830 135,000 61,063 255,000 379,310
2005 255,000 297,868 136,000 51,068 270,000 365,540
2006 275,000 287,248 100,000 40,971 285,000 350,960
2007 305,000 275,568 101,000 34,064 300,000 335,285
2008-2012 2,035,000 1,139,129 383,000 67,585 1,780,000 1,397,215
2013-2017 2,725,000 575,848 13,000 1,200 2,390,000 796,200
2018-2019 620,000 36,648 0 Q 1,165.000 105,900
Total $6.690,000 $3238688 $L018000 $328519 $6.690.000 $4,122.705

The Special assessment bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the City and are repaid
from the resources of the debt service fund. The City levies an assessment against the effected

property owners.
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10. LEASES

A. Capital Leases

The City entered into a capital lease for a new municipal building and leases fire department
equipment under capital leases that extend into prior years.

The City owns the land where the municipal building is being constructed and has leased the
land to PS&W Holding Company. PS&W Holding Company has subleased the site and
improvements to the City. The City and PS&W Holding Company have assigned their rights
under the leases to The Huntington National Bank, Trust Department. Huntington National
Bank has sold certificates of participation in the sublease. The City will make rental payments
every six months to Huntington National Bank. Interest rates on the sublease range between
3.2% and 4.75%. The sublease is renewable annually, subject to annual appropriation, and
expires in 2026. It’s the intention of the City to renew the lease annually.

The City’s lease obligations meet the criteria of a capital lease as defined by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 13 “Accounting for Leases”, and have been recorded on
the government-wide statemnents. The leased assets have been capitalized for the amount of the
present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease. The following is a
schedule of the future long-term minimum lease payments required under the capital lease, and
the present value of the minimum lease payments is as follows:

Year Ending
December 31
2003 $1,972,942
2004 1,904,201
2005 1,829,042
2006 1,668,848
2007 1,669,660
Thereafter 31.730.944
Total minimum lease payments 40,775,637
Less: Amount representing interest (16.661.314)

Present value of minimum lease payments  $24,114,323
Capital lease payments have been reclassified and are reflected as debt service in the fund
financial statements. These expenditures are reflected as program expenditures on a
budgetary basis. Capital Assets acquired under capital leases in accordance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards Board No. 13 are as follows:
Buildings and Improvements  $24,400,000

B. Operating I eases

As described in the capital lease footnote above, the City has one operating lease involving
the lease of land to PS&W Holding Company for $1 per year.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Public Employees Retirement System

All full-time employees, other than non-administrative full-time police officers and firefighters,
participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement
Board. PERS provides basic retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 145 of
the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report which may be obtained by
writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-4642.

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5 percent of their annual covered salary to fund
pension obligations. The employer pension contribution rate for the City is 13.55 percent of
covered payroll. Contributions are authorized by State statute. The contribution rates are
determined actuarially. The City’s required contributions to PERS for the years ended December
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $604,764, $444,840, and $400,802, respectively. The full amount
has been contributed for 2001 and 2000 and 71 percent has been contributed for 2002.

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The City contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F), a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system administered by the OP&F’s Board of Trustees.
OP&F provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by the Ohio State
Legislature and by Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code. OP&F issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial information and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by writing to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund, 140 East
Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215 - 5164.

Police and firefighters are required to contribute 10 percent of their annual covered salary to fund
pension obligations and the City is required to contribute 19.5 percent for police and 24.0 percent
for firefighters. Contributions are authorized by State statute. The City’s contributions to the
OP&F for the years ending December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $452,418, $453,273 and
$377,278, respectively. The full amount has been contributed for 2001 and 2000 and 69 percent
has been contributed for 2002.
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12. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Public Employees Retirement System

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) provides postretirement health care
coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit.
Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is available. The
health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer's contribution to
PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care based on authority granted by
State statute. The current year employer contribution rate was 13.55 percent of covered payroll;
5.00 percent was the portion that was used to fund health care.

Benefits are advance-funded using the entry age normal cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions, based on PERS's latest actuarial review performed as of December 31, 2001,
include a rate of return on investments of 8.00 percent, an annual increase in active employee
total payroll of 4.75 percent compounded annually (assuming no change in the number of active
employees) and an additional increase in total payroll of between .54 percent and 5.1 percent
based on additional annual pay increases. Health care premiums were assumed to increase 4.75
percent annually.

All investments are carried at market. For actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market
approach is used. Assets are adjusted to reflect 25 percent of unrealized market appreciation or
depreciation on investment assets.

The number of active contributing participants was 402,041. The City's actual contributions for
the current year, which were used to fund postemployment benefits were $223,160. The actual
contribution and the actuarially required contribution amounts are the same. PERS's net assets
available for payment of benefits at December 31, 2001, (the latest information available) were
$11.6 billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability were
$16.4 billion and $4.8 billion, respectively.

Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) provides postretirement health care coverage to
any person who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or
eligible dependent child of such person. An eligible dependent child is any child under the age
of 18 whether or not the child is attending school or under the age of 22 if attending school full-
time or on a 2/3 basis.
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13.

The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio Revised
Code provides the authority allowing the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund’s board of trustees
to provide health care coverage and states that health care costs paid from the Ohio Police and
Fire Pension Fund shall be included in the employer's contribution rate. Health care funding and
accounting is on a pay-as-you-go basis. The total police employer contribution is 19.5 percent of
covered payroll and the total firefighter employer contribution rate is 24 percent of covered
payroll, of which 7.75 percent of covered payroll was applied to the postemployment health care
program during the current year. In addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been
required to contribute a portion of the cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from
their monthly benefit payment.

The City's actual contributions for the current year that were used to fund postemployment
benefits were $137,574 for police and $34,314 for fire. The OP&F’s total health care expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2001, (the latest information available) were $122,298,771,
which was net of member contributions of $6,874,699. The number of OP&F participants
eligible to receive health care benefits as of December 31, 2001, was 13,174 for police and
10,239 for firefighters.

CONDIUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance
to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property financed and
are payable solely from bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector
entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, nor any political subdivision
thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2002, there were six series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding. The
aggregate principal amount payable for the two series issued after January 1, 1996, was
$21,100,000. The aggregate principal amount payable for the four series issued prior to January
1, 1996, could not be determined; however, their original amounts totaled $7,900,000.

The City has also issued Revenue Bonds to proved financial assistance to the City’s health care
facilities. The monies are used primarily for upgrades to these facilities. The City has no
obligation for the repayment of this debt. The bonds are not bonded indebtedness of the City and
are therefore not reported on the City’s balance sheet. At December 31, 2002, there were two
series of Revenue Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount payable for the series
issued after January 1, 1996, was $6,750,000. The aggregate principal amount payable for the
series issued prior to January 1, 1996, could not be determined; however, its original amount
totaled $8,985,000.
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16.

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The City had the following outstanding commitments at year end:

Projects Amount
Bicycle/Pedestrian-Mason Plan $306,357
Butler Warren/Bethany Watermain 960
Fairway Drive Flood Study 28,370
First Ave/S Forest Storm Sewer 45,641
Heritage Oak Park Expansion 31,252
Mason Montg. Rd. Widen-North 347,812
Mason Municipal Center 3,258,602
Mason Road Water Tower 364,139
North East Street Storm Sewer ) 35,924
North West Sewer & Lift Station 71,522
Storm Water Utility 14,888
Storm Water Utility-David Runn Flood Study 16,720
Storm Water Utility-Pine Hill Dam Flood Study 61,666
Street Maintenance Program 91,413
Third Avenue Storm Sewer 95,603
Traffic Signal-Lenscrafiers 102,942
Tylersville Extension/Widening 285,300
US 42 Trunk Sewer-North 11,054
US 42 Trunk Sewer-South 307,135
Utility Management System 6,426
Water Reclamation Plant Improvement 955,815
Water Treatment Plant Phase I 131,798
Western Row & Snider Intersection Improvments 66,312
Western Row & US 42 Intersection Redesign 1759
Total $6,645.410
DEFEASANCE OF DEBT

As part of the Water Service Agreement between the City of Cincinnati and the City of Mason,
the City of Mason defeased its 1991 and 1993 Mortgage Revenue bonds on March 1, 2002. The
total amount defeased was $7,170,000. No new debt was issued. The City of Mason deposited
$3,370,000 in an escrow fund held by U.S. Bank while the City of Cincinnati deposited
33,800,000 respectively.

SPECIAL ITEM
The City satisfied the long-term needs for a plentiful supply of water at a reasonable cost by

transferring the City’s water system to Greater Cincinnati Water Works (GCWW). The transfer
of operations was completed March 1, 2002.
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As a result, the City of Mason only recorded two months worth of revenue and expenses in the
Water fund. Since the City is effectively out of the water utility business and the capital assets of
the water utility are no longer producing revenue, they have been written off. The loss on
disposal of capital assets of $37,195,088 was recorded as a special item.

COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

At December 31, 2002, the City had a deficit (original budget) fund balance on the budgetary

basis in the following funds: State Highway Improvement Fund and Government Center
Reserve Fund.

At December 31, 2002, the City had a deficit (final budget) fund balance on the budgetary basis
in the following funds: Warren County Motor Vehicle License Tax Fund, Mason Enterprise
Parke TIF Fund, Government Center Fund and Government Center Reserve Fund.

At December 31, 2002, expenditures plus outstanding encumbrances exceeded appropriations at

the legal level of control in the following funds: General Fund, General Government and Public
Safety; and Fire and Emergency Medical Services Fund, Public Safety.
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenncs, Expenditures and Clianges in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgerary Dasis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Diecember 31, 2002

General
Funil
Original Final Variance from
Budper Hudpet Acmal Final Budger
Reveuues:
Taxes 311,776,906 $12,931,870 515,208,408 $2,276,538
Tines, Licenscs 82 Permirs 280,341 491,475 1,040,134 148,659
Intergovernmenral 1,077,187 1,623,242 1,871,012 247,770
Charges for Scrvites 220,b000 236,477 236,478 1
Invesmment Earnings 150,000 388,320 415,549 27,229
Other Revenucs 292,394 632,915 655,262 22,347
Toml Revenues 14,396,828 16,704,299 19,426,843 2,722,544
Iixpenditurcs:
Current:
General Governnicnt 4,273,844 7,725,771 B,067,251 (341,480)
Public Safery 2,806,527 3,018,981 3,112,257 (93,276)
Lcisure Time Acrivirtics 2,208,235 3,200,082 3,116,309 83,773
Community Development 940,823 1,160,218 997,560 162,658
Basic Utility Service 0 84,049 78,254 5,795
Tronsporeation & Swece Tepaic 3,227,938 2,674,821 2,417,103 257,718
Dcbr Service:
Principal Retiremcne 9,650,000 11,650,000 11,650,000 0
Interest and Fiseal Charges 337,000 429,019 376,124 52,895
Taotal Expendirures 23,444,412 29,942,941 29,814,858 128,083
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditurcs (2.047,584) {13,238,642) {10,38R,015) 2,850,627
OCther Anancing sources (uso):
Dcbt Proceeds 10,250,000 8,431,537 8,431,538 1
Transfers In a 3,012,670 3,012,671 1
Transfers (Out) {525,000) {3,987,974) (3,987,973) 1
Towl Other Financing Sources {Uses) 9,725,000 7,156,233 7,456,236 3
Net Change in Fund Dalance 677,416 (5,782,409) (2,931,779) 2,85(L630
Fund Balsuce Beginning of Year (includes
prior y=ar encumbrances apprapriated) 6,720,236 6,720,236 6,720,236 0
Fund Balance lind of Year $7,397,652 5937,827 $3,788,457 52,850,630
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenus:, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Acoual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Rasis)

For the Fiscal Yot Ended December 31, 2002

Fire and Emergency

Medical Service

Fund

Qriginal Fina Varianee from

Budper Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenucs:
Taxes $1,250,000 §1,465,997 53,265,993 $1,800,001
Intergovermiental V] 3,247 30,248 1
Charges for Services n 33g,741 338,781 0
Investnent Earnings 0 25,804 32,321 6,517
Other Revenues 0 14,697 14,697 0
Totl Revenues 1,250,000 1,475,526 3,682,045 1,806,519
Expenditures:
Currcart:

Public Safery 589,210 989,211 2,616,195 (1,626,984)
Total Expenditures 680,210 989,211 2,616,195 {1,626,984)
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendituces 360,790 886,315 1,065,850 179,535
Other financing suucees (uscs):

Translers Ty 0 1,800,000 1,800,080 0

Transfers (Qug) 0 (1,958,599) (1,958,599) 0
Tntal Oclier Financing Sources (Usrs) 4] {158,599} {158,599) il
Ner Change in Fund Balance 560,790 727,716 907,251 179,535
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes

poior year encumbrancecs appropriated) 1,135,009 1,135,009 1,135,009 0
Fund Balance End of Year 51,695,799 51,862,725 §2,042,260 §179,535
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City of Mason

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information
For The Year Ended December 31, 2002

. BUDGETARY PROCESS

All funds, except agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The major documents
prepared are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriations resolution, all of
which are prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The tax budget demonstrates a need for existing or
increased tax rates. The certificate of estimated resources establishes a limit on the amount Council may
appropriate. The appropriations resolution is Council’s authorization to spend resources and sets annual
limits on expenditures plus encumbrances at the level of control selected by Council. The legal level of
control has been established by Council at the function level for the General Fund, Street Fund, State
Highway Fund, Fire and Emergency Medical Services Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund and the Waste
Collection Fund. All other funds are maintained at the fund level.

The certificate of estimated resources may be amended during the year if projected increases or decreases in
revenue are identified by the Finance Director. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts on
the budgetary statements reflect the amounts on the certificate of estimated resources when the original
appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts on the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts on the final amended certificate of estimated resources issued during the
year.

The appropriation resolution is subject to amendment throughout the year with the restriction that
appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources. The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts
reflect the first appropriation resolution for that fund that covered the entire year, including amounts
automatically carried forward from prior years. The amounts reporied as the final budgeted amounts
represent the final appropriation amounts passed by Council during the year.

While the City is reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance on the basis
of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and
Actual presented for the general fund and fire levy fund are presented on the budgetary basis to provide a
meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget basis
and GAAP basis are as follows:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is mcurred
(GAAP).

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures (budget) rather than as a reservation of fund balance
(GAAP).

4. Unreported cash represents amounts received but not included as revenue on the budget basis
operating statements. These amounts are included as revenue on the GAAP basis operating
statement.
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The following table summarizes the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP basis statements to the
budgetary basis statements for the general fund and fire levy fund.

Net Change in Fund Balance
General Fire and Emergency
Medical Service
GAAP Basis ($2,451,715) $894,799
Net Adjustment for Revenue Accruals 10,879,031 3,377
Net Adjustment for Expenditure Accruals (3,749,897) 131,628
Encumbrances (7.609.198) (122.553)
Budget Basis ($2,931,779) $907,251
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City of Mason

Combining Balance Shect
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2002

Asscis:
Equiry in Pooled Cash and Investments
Romicted Cash and Invaimments
Reccivables:

Taxes

Accouns

Interest

Interpovernmental

Loans

Special Asscssments
Inventory

Towml Asscs

Liabilicies and Fund Balances:
Liabiliges:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wapes and Bencfits
Compensated Absaness
Reninage Payable

Deferred Revenue

Toml Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Inventory
Reerved for Debe Service

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reporeed in:

Special Revenue Funds

Dbt Scrvice Funds

Capital Projects Funds
Toral Fund Balances

Toral Liabilitics and Fund Balances

Nonmajor Nonmajor Nonmajor Tonl
Speaal Drebr Capiaal Nanmajor
Revenue Service Projeais Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Funds
$3,931 488 3304,545 §3,141,594 $7,377,627
0 0 582,069 582,069
0 468,960 0 468,960
25,452 0 0 25,452
26,969 2,500 26,876 56,345
1,128,169 ] 0 1,128,169
2914 0 0 2914
0 1,734,305 0 1,734,305
31,640 .0 0 31,640
5,146,632 2,510,310 3,750,539 11,407 481
35,154 0 24417 59,571
11,540 0 0 11,540
295 0 0 295
36,923 0 27,424 64,347
1,010,803 2,204,529 13,460 3,228,792
1,094,715 2,204,529 65,301 3,364,545
249,936 0 2,221,297 2,471,233
31,640 0 0 31,640
o 310 0 310
3,770,341 0 o 3,770,341
0 305,471 0 305,471
0 0 1,463,941 1,463,941
4,051,917 305,781 3,685,238 8,042,936
55,146,632 $2,510,310 $3,750,539 511,407 481
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City of Mason

Combining Siaiement of Revenuey, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Govermikental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenuo:

Tarcs

Fincs, Licenscs & Pommits
Charyes for Services
Investment Earnings
Intapuvanmental
Spedal Asosmeonts
Other Revenucs

Total Revenues
Expenditurcs:
Cureiu:
General Govenuniciit
Public Safety
Transportation & Steeet Repair
Debt Service:
Principal Retircimene
Intorost and Fiscal Chargex
Tatal Expenditures

Excess of Revenuss Over (Under) Expenditures

Orther Financing Sources (Uses):
Procerds of Lang-Term Capital-Related Debt
Transfers In
Translers (Cur)

Tatal Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fuud Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Yuar

Change in Reserve for Iventory

Fund Balance End of Year

Nanmajer Nemmajer Nunnriajor Total
Spexial Dubt Capital Noanmajor
Revemie Service Projects Govenumeneal
Funds Funds Funds Funds

$0 $496,642 $180,480 3677,122
322,199 (] 0 322,199
256,912 1] 0 256,912
117,028 2424 139,012 258 464
896,697 0] 34,049 930,74G
0 201,514 0 201,511
9,324 0 0 9,324
1,602,160 700,577 353,541 2,050,278
409,875 0 1,354,874 1,764,749
91,398 0 0 91,398
974,416 0 2,530,473 3,504,889
Q 388,000 0 388,000
0 283,854 189,525 473,379
1,475,689 671,854 4,074 872 6,222,415
126,471 28723 {2,721,331) {3,566,137)
0 Y 680,000 680,000
1 0 7,799,150 7,799,150
(924,268) (3,000) (1,821,898} (2,749,166)
{924,268) (3,000) 6,657,252 5,729,984
(797,797) 25,723 2935921 2,163,547
4,838,062 280,058 749,317 5,867,437
11,652 0 0 11,652
54,051,917 $305,781 $3,685,238 38,042,936
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City of Mason
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenuc Funds

Deccmber 31, 2002
Soeet Consiruction, Swe Highway Warren County Motor Swect Federal
Maintenance and Repaic Improvement Vehicle License Tax Improvement Grant
Asscrs:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments $1,554,515 $325,386 50 5603,328 §87,963
Reccivables:
Tues (¥ 0 0 0 0
Accounts 0 o 0 a 0
Interest 12,900 2,700 0 §,007 0
Intergrovemmental 354,449 28,730 0 0 744,990
Loans 0 0 1] 0 0
Invencory 31,640 0 0 0 0
Total Assers 1,953,504 356,816 0 608,335 832,953
Liabilitics and Fund Balances:
Liabilides:
Accounts Payable 5,942 0 0 0 0
Accrued Wages and Bencfits 4,044 0 0 0 0
Compensated Absences 138 0 0 H 0
Rerainape Payable 36,923 0 0 0 0
Deferred Revenuc 237,098 20,054 0 2,531 744,990
Total Liabilides 284,145 20,054 0 2,531 744,990
Fund Ralances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 122,672 0 0 0 0
Rescrved for Inventory 31,640 [H 0 0 0
Unreserved, Undesignated, Repored in:
Special Revenue Funds 1,515,047 336,762 0 605,804 87,963
Towml Fund Ralances 1,669,359 336,762 o 605,804 87,963
Tortal Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,953,504 3356816 S0 5608,335 5832,953
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D.ARE. Step Downtown Indiana and Parks and Bicycle and Police
Grant Grang Development/Loan Ohio Railroad Recrcation Iedostrian Way K-9

$54,300 $0 578,294 §252,141 $78,570 $5,291 5466
0 0 ] 0 ] 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 ] 0

0 0 0 2,101 ] ] 0

0 0 0 ] 0 ¢ 0

0 0 2914 0 ] 0 0

0 ] 0 ] o 0 0
54,300 o 81,208 254,242 78,570 5,291 466
o 0 0 () 0 0 o

0 0 ] 0 0 ] o

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

] 0 0 ) 0 ] 0

o 0 2,914 1,062 0 0 0

0 ] 2914 1,062 0 1] 0

) 0 0 19,611 0 5,291 0

o 0 0 0 ) 0 0
54,300 0 78,294 233,569 78,570 1 466
54,300 ] 78,294 253,180 78,570 5,291 466
$54,300 50 $81,208 5254242 $78,570 §5,291 5466
Continued
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Ciry of Mason

Combining Balance Shect
Nonmajor Special Revenuc Funds
Deocember 31, 2002

Asscrs:
Equity in Pooled Cash and Invesmments
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Interese
Intcrgovernmeneal
Loans
Invauory

Tormal Asses

Liabilities and Fund Balanecs:
Liabilidies:

Accounts Payable

Acerued Wages and Benefits
Compensated Absences
Reminage Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilides
Fund Balan<cs:

Reserved for Encumnbrancss
Rescrved for Tnventory

Unreserved, Undesignated, Repored in:

Spedial Revenue Funds
Tota!l Fund Balances

Tortal Liabilines and Fund Balances

Police Crime Drug Law Law Enforcement Indigent Municipa! Court
Prevontion Enlorcement and Educaton Driver Computcr Costs
$869 $36,513 514,938 $109,934 $164,787
0 0 0 H [+

0 15 135 350 5,874

0 0 0 0 1,373

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 i} H 0

0 0 0 0 0
869 36,528 15,073 110,284 172,034
0 0 o 0 2,149

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 694

1 0 0 0 2,843

0 0 0 0 4,231

0 o 0 0 0
469 36,528 15,073 110,284 164,960
469 36,528 15,073 110,284 169,191
3869 536,528 $15,073 §110,284 $172,034
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Total

Monmajor
Municipal Court Municipal Court Vcehicle Munidpal Court Subdivision Spedial Revenue
Computer Education Improvancnt Immobilization Fee Probation Scrvices Inspection Funds
§59,450 $86,709 $6,015 $63,956 $348,063 $3,931,488
0 ¢] 0 o 0 [
1,887 4,857 70 5,729 6,535 25,452
0 0 0 o 2,888 26,969
0 [ 0 1} 0 1,128,169
0 o 0 o 0 2914
0 0 0 0 0 31,640
61,337 91,566 6,085 69,685 357,486 5,146,632
20,952 2,204 o 0 3,907 35,154
0 0 0 4] 7,496 11,540
G 0 1] 0 157 295
o 0 0 0 0 36,923
1] 0 0 0 1,460 1,010,803
20,952 2,204 0 0 13,020 1,094,715
2,200 27,458 0 442 68,031 249,936
0 0 0 0 0 31,640
38,185 61,904 6,085 69,243 276,435 3,770,341
40,385 89,362 6,085 69,685 344,466 4,051,917
561,337 591,566 $6,085 $69,685 5357486 $5,146,632

6l



City of Mason

Combining Sttement ol Revenues, Expendinires
and Changes in Fund Balance

Neonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended Decamber 31, 2602

Reovenues:
Fines, Licenses & Permits
Charges for Secvices
Investment Earnings
Inicrgovernmental
Other Revenues
Total Revenues
Expendirures:
Current:
General Government
Public Safery
Transportation & Streer Repair
Total Expenditurcs
Excoss of Revenues Over {Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Translers {Out}

Toral Other Finanding Sources {Usos)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Batance Beginning of Year

Change in Reerve for Inventory

Fund Batance End of Year

Strect Construction, State Highway ~ Warren County Motor Street Federal
Maintenance and Repaic Improvement Vchicle License Tax Improvementc Grant
50 $0 $0 378,791 50
o 0 0 0 0
60,878 11,079 0 20,849 0
745,125 60,413 0 0 66,786
0 0 0 ] 0
806,003 71,492 Q 99,640 66,786
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 90,898
960,365 0 5,215 2,447 0
960,365 0 5215 2,447 50,898
(154,362) 71,492 {5,215} 97,193 (24,112)
(7,000} 0 {291,92%) 0 0
{7,000} 0 (291,92%) 0 0
(161,362) 71,492 (297,144) 97,193 (24,112)
1,819,065 265,270 297,144 508,611 112,075
11,652 0 0 0 0
$1,669,359 $336,762 50 $605,804 587,963

62



DARE. Step Downtown Indiana and Parks and Bicycle and Police
Grant Grant Drevelopment/Loan OChio Railroad Recreation Pedestrian Way K-9

50 $0 50 50 50 55,291 50

0 ] a 0 164,200 0 0

0 0 1,369 7,492 11,882 0 0

24,373 ] 0 ] 0 0 0

0 o 1,328 o ] 0 0

24373 0 2,697 7,492 176,082 5,201 0

0 0 ) 0 0 0 0

o 0 i} 0 i} 0 0

0 ] 0 6,389 0 0 0

0 0 0 6,389 0 0 0

24,373 4 2,697 1,103 176,082 5,291 0

0 (8,144) 0 (53,000} (550,000) ] 0

0 (8,144) 0 {53,000 (550,000) 0 0

24,373 {8,144} 2,697 (51,897) (373,918) 5,291 0
29,927 8,144 75,597 305,077 452,488 0 466

o 0 0 ] 0 0 0

$54,300 $0 $78,294 $253,180 578,570 $5,291 5466
Cononucd
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City of Mason

Combining Sratement of Revenucs, Expendirures
and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Special Revenuc Funds

For thc Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Police Crime Drug Law Law Enforcement Indigent Municipal Court
Prevendon Enforcement and Educadon Driver Computer Costs
Revenus:
Fines, Licenscs 8 Pormits $850 $1.674 $2,068 313,887 $71,484
Charges lor Services 0 0 o 0 o
Invesement Earnings 1] ] i} 0 679
Inrergovernmenial 0 ] o 0 g
Other Revenues 0 1,461 0 a ¢
Total Revenucs 850 3,135 2,068 13,887 72,163
Expendirures:
Currene:
General Govanment 0 o 0 2,086 135,391
Public Safery 500 1] a 0 o
Transporadon & Sirect Repair 0 1] 0 0 0
Toml Expenditures 500 1] 0 2,086 135,391
Excas of Revenues Over {Under) Expendirures as0 3,135 2,068 11,801 (63,228)
Other Financing Sources {(Us=):

Transfers (Our) 0 0 ] 0 0
Torad Other Finanding Sources {Uscs) 0 0 0 0 0
Net Change in Fund Balance 350 3,135 2,068 11,801 (63,228)
Fund Balance Beginning of Year 519 33,393 13,005 98,483 232,419
Change in Reserve for Inventery 0 1] 0 1} 0
Fund Balance End of Year Sa69 536,528 $15.073 §110,284 5169,191
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Towd

y . Nonmajor
Municipal Coure Municipal Court Vehicle Munidpal Coun Subdivision Special Rovenue
Computer Education Improvement Immobilization Fec Probation Services Inspection Funds
521,873 $54,404 §605 371,272 50 5322199
0 0 o 1] 92,712 256,912
0 0 o o 2,800 117,028
a 0 o o 0 896,697
0 0 0 1} 6,535 9,324
21,873 54,404 605 71,272 102,047 1,602,160
75,252 30,956 0 1,587 164,603 409,875 -
0 o 0 0 0 1,398
0 0 0 0 0 974,416
75,252 30956 0 1,587 164,603 1,475,689
(53,379} 23,448 605 69,685 (62,556) 126,471
0 0 0 0 (14,195) {924,268)
o 0 0 0 {14,195) (924,268)
(53,379} 23,448 605 69,685 (76,751) {797,797)
93,764 65,914 5,480 ] 421,217 4,838,062
0 0 0 0 0 11,652
$40,385 $89,362 $6,085 §69,685 §344,466 §4,051,917
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City of Mason

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonpmajor Debt Sarvice Funds
Decemnber 31, 2002

Assels:
Equity in Peoled Cash and Investments
Reccivables:

Taxes

Interese

Special Assessments

Total Assers

Liabilitics and Fund Balances:
Liabilines;

Deferred Revenuc

Toral Liabilites

Fund Balanccs:
Reserved for Debe Serviee

Unreserved, Undosignated, Reported in:

Debt Scrvice Funds
Toral Fund Balances

Total Liabilioes and Fund Balances

Taral
Nonmajor
General Obligadon Speaial Asscssment Dcbt Scrvice

Bond Redrement Bond Retirement Funds
$301,287 $3,258 $304,545
468,960 0 468,960
2,500 0 2,500
0 1,734,305 1,734,305
772,747 1,737,563 2,510,310
470,224 1,734,305 2,204,529
470224 1,734,305 2,204,529
i) 310 310
302,523 2,948 305,471
302,523 3,258 305,781
§$772,747 §1,737,563 $2,510,310
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City of Mason

Combining Stazement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance
Nenmajor Debr Service Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenucs:
Taxes
Investment Eamings
Sperial Asscssmients
Toral Revenues
Expenditures:
Debr Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charpes
Total Expendirures

Excess of Bevenues Over (Under) Expendinres

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers {Out)

Toral Other Fmnancing Souress {Uscs)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Batance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Tol
Nonmajor
Genea] Obligadon Spedial Asscssment Dcbt Service
Bond Retirement Bond Redrement Funds
§496,642 $0 $496,642
2,424 0 2,424
0 201,511 201,511
499 066 201,511 700,577
230,000 153,000 3E8,0a0
197,015 86,839 283,854
427015 244 839 671,854
72,051 (43,328) 28,723
0 {3,000) {3,000)
1] {3,000) (3,000}
72,051 (46,328) 25,723
230,472 49 586 280,058
$302,523 $3,258 $305,781
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City of Mason

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
December 31, 2002

Asscrs:

Equity in Pooled Cash and [nvestmenis

Romicted Cash and Investmens
Interest

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilides:

Accounts [Payable

Rerainage Payablc

Deferred Rovenuc

Tonl Liabilitics

Fund Balances:
Reserved flor Encumbrances

Unreserved, Undesignated, Reporeed in:

Capital Projcas Funds
Total Fugd Balances

Total Liabilines and Fund Balances

Tax Increment Cemeral Mason Enrerprise Tylersville Mason-Monigomery
Financing Parke TIF Parke TIF Raoad Project Road Improvement
§71,428 30 §0 §857,152 $562,261

0 506,804 75,265 o i}

0 1,299 101 7,113 4,665

71,428 508,103 75,366 564,265 566,926

0 359 0 0 o

] o 0 a o

(] 583 0 3,595 2,358

o 942 0 3,595 2,358

0 188,097 0 287,656 139,958

71,428 319,064 75,366 573,014 424,610
71,428 507,161 75,366 860,670 564,568
§71,428 $508,103 §75,366 §864,265 §566,926
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Toral

I & O Bridgef Nonmajor
Mason-Montgomery Government Capinl Projects
Road Widening Centcr Funds
51 $1,650,752 $3,141,594
0 0 582,069
0 13,698 26,876
1 1,664,450 3,750,539
0 24,058 24,417
Q 27,424 27,424
0 6,924 13,460
0 58,406 65,301
0 1,605 586 2,221,297
1 458 1,463,941
1 1,606,044 3,685,238
51 31,664,450 $3,750,539
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City of Mason

Combining Smtoment of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajer Capital Prajects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues:

Taxcs

Investment Earnings
Intergoverrmental

Total Revenucs
Expenditures:
Currcat:
General Govemment
Transporation & Soeer Bepair
Debr Service:
Intrest and Fiscal Charges
Toral Expendirures
Execss of Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Proceeds of Long-Term Capiml-Related Debr
Translas In
Transfers {Our)
Toml Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance Beginning of Year

Fund Balance End of Year

Tax Incrament Cenrral Mason Enterprise Tylersville Mascn-Montgomery

Financing Parke TIF Parke TIF Road Project Road Improvenient

$56,801 $123,679 50 50 50

0 4212 1,795 6,898 38,290

0 0 0 0 34,049

56,801 127,891 1,795 6,898 72,339

0 o 0 0 0

750 3,437 570,616 696,745 1,258,925

31,800 20,868 35,813 20,744 80,300

32,550 24,305 606,429 717,489 1,339,225
24,251 103,586 (604,634) (710,591) (1,266,886}

0 0 680,000 0 0

o 0 0 1,601,150 6,198,000

0 0 0 0 0

] o 680,000 1,601,150 6,198,000

24,251 103,586 75,366 890,559 4,931,114
47,177 403575 0 (29,889) (4,366,546)

$71,428 §507,161 §75,366 $860,670 $564,568
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Total

I & O Bridge/ Nonmajor
Mason-Montgomery Government Capital Projeces
Road Widcniing Center Funds
S0 S0 $180,480
1,783 86,034 139012
0 0 34,049
1,793 86,034 353,541
0 1,354,874 1,354,874
0 0 2,530,473
0 0 189,525
0 1,354,874 4,074,872
1,783 (1,268,840) (3,721,331)
0 0 680,000
0 0 7,799,150
(150,100 (1,671,798) {1,821,898)
(150,100 {1,671,798) 6,657,252
(148,317) {2,940,638) 2,935,921
148,318 4,546,682 749,317
51 §1,606,044 $3,686,238
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City ol Mason

Statement of Changes Tn Assets and Liabilities
Agency Fund

For the Fisal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Dissolved
Joint Firc
District
Beginning Ending,
Balance Addirions Deductons Balanee
Asser: .
Rastricted Cash and Invesoments $224,551 50 §204,724 £19,827
Receivables:

Inrcrast 3,085 1] 3,085 o
Tortal Asscrs 227,636 0 207,309 19,827
Liabilicies:

Other Lisbilides 227,636 0 207 809 19,827
Total Liabilitics $227,636 30 $207 809 $19,827
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures md Change in Fund Balanec
Budget and Acrual (Nan-GAAP Budgetary liasis)

For the Fiseal Year Enlded December 31, 2002

Bevenucs:
Intergovernnicntl
Invesmment Earnings
Tol Revenue
Expenditurcs:
Current:
Transporeation & Strect Repaic
Total Expenditurcs

Excess of Revenues Over (Uixler) Expenditurcs

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers (Cut)

Total Othier Financing Sources (Uscs)
Nct Change ip Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Dalance End of Year

Street Construetion,

Maintenance aud Repair
Fund

Original Final Vadance from

Buwdger Budper Actual Final Budper
§75,000 $704,882 $704,884 . %2
0 60,897 78,597 17,700
75,000 765,779 783,481 17,702
972,197 1,232,399 1,048,977 183,422
972,197 1,232,399 1,048,977 183,422
{897,197) {466,620) {265,496} 201,124
0 (7,000 {7,060} U
0 {7,000) {7,000) 1
(897,197} {173,620) {272,495) 201,124
1,692,269 1,692,249 1,692,269 0
5795,072 51,218,649 $),419,773 $201,124
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditurcs and Clanges in Fund Palance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgcrary Basis)

For the Fiseal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Soare Highway
Improvement
Fuud
Original Final Variance from
Budget Dudget Actual Final Budgcr
Bovenues:
Intergoverninental $45,000 $57,152 $57,153 31
Investment Eamings 4] 11,082 12,997 1,915
Total Revennes 45,000 68,234 70,150 1,916
Lxpenditurss:
Cagital Qutlay 300,000 300,000 ] 300,000
Total Expenditures 300,000 300,000 1] 300,000
Net Change it Fund Talance {255,000) {231,766) 70,150 341,216
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (ncludes
privr year encumbrances appropriated) 253,955 253,955 253,955 0
FPund Balance End of Year {$1,045) 22,180 $£324,105 $301,916
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Clanges in Fund Balauce
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Dudgetacy Basis)

For the Fiscal Yeae Ended December 31, 2002

Warren County Motor
Vchicle License Tax
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Bwlger Builger Actual Finol Budger
DRevenues:
Taxcs 50 50 S0 §0
Total Revenues 0 4] ] 4]
Expenditircs:
Current:

Transportation 8 Strect Repaic 1] 13,929 0 13,929
Total Expendirurcs 0 13,929 0 13,929
Excess of Revenucs Over (Under) Expenditurcs ] {13,929} 0 13,929
Other Anancing sources {uscs):

Translers (Our) 0 (291,929 (291,929) 0
Tortal Othier Financing Sources (Uses) 0 {291,929) {291,929) ]
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 {305,858) {291,929) 13,929
Fund Balance Degiuning of Yeac (includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 291,929 291,929 291,929 0
Fund Balance Ll of Year $291,929 {$13,929) S0 $13,929
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expendituces and Changes in Fund Bolnnce
Dudpgee and Acrual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended Decenuber 31, 2002

R.ovenucs:
Fines, Licenses 8 Penies
Invcstment Earnings

Tota] Revenues

Expenditures:
Cucrene:

Transportatiun & Strecr Repair
Total Expenditures

Ner Change in Fund Balance

Fund Halance Beginning of Year (includes
prior year encumbraices appropriated)

Fund Balantc End of Year

Street
Improvenicnt
Tundk
Original Final Variance from
Budpecr Budger Acnual Final Budget
$150,000 578,791 378,791 50
1 23,066 24,920 1,454
151,000 101,857 103,711 1,854
+50,000 +135,365 2,447 452,918
450,000 455,365 2,447 452,918
(3G0,000% {353,508) 101,264 154,772
499,684 499,684 499,684 4]
$199.684 5146,176 $640,948 §454,772
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City of Mase

Scheduole of Revenucs, Expenditurces and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgeeary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Federal
Grane
Fund
Criginal Final Variance from
Budger Budper Actual Final Budger
Revenues:
Intcrgovernmental $125,000 $175,659 5175,659 50
Total Revenues 125,000 175,659 175,659 Y
Expenditures:
Currenc:

Public Safety 125,000 125,000 99,494 25,502
Total Expendirures 125,000 125,000 99, L08R 25,502
Net Change in Fund Balance 4] 50,659 76,161 25,502
Fund Ba[ance Beginning ol Year {includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 11,801 11,801 11,801 1]
Fund Balance ind of Year $11,801 $62,460 §87,962 $25,502
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City of Masun

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Clhanges in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Rudgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Yeur Ended Deccnber 31, 2002

D.ALE.
Grant
Fund
Original Yiual Varianee from
Budger Budger Actual Final Buslger
Revenues:
Intergovernnicneal 510,000 524,373 524,373 50
Total Revenues 10,000 24,373 24,373 1]
LExpenditurcs:
Cucrent:

Public Safety 12,000 12,000 0 12,000
‘Taeal Expenclitures 12,000 12,000 0 12,000
Net Change in Fund Dalance {2,000) 12,373 24,373 12,000
Fund Halance Beginning of Year {includes

prior yoar encumbrances appropriated) 29 926 29,926 29,926 0
Fund Bolance End of Year 527,926 £42,299 $54,2%9 $12,000
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures aml Changes in Fund Dalance
Budgerand Actual (Non-GAAP Budgerary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Secp
Grant
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpee Budger Actual Final Budger
Revenues:
Taxes 50 0 80 §0
Toml Revenues 0 0 0 o
Expenditures:
Currenr:

General Government 0 0 0 0
Tom! Expenditures ] 0 0 0
Excmss of Revenues Over (Under) Expenilimres 0 0 0 0
Other financing sources (use):

Translers {Out) n {8,145) (8,145) ]
Tntal Otlier Financing Sources {Uses) L {8,145) {#,145) 0
Net Clange in Fund Balance 0 (8,145) (8,145} 0
Fund Balancc Beginning of Year {includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 8,145 R, 145 8,145 1]
Fund Balance End of Year $8,145 S0 S0 S0

79



City of Mason

Scliedule of Revenues, Expenditures aud Clanges in Fukl Ralance
Budper and Actual (Non-GAADP Budgerary Basis)
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

R.evenues:
Investment Earnings
Other Revenues

Towl Revenues

Lxpenditures:
Curcrent:

Community Development
Taral Expenditures

Ner Change in I'und Balaace

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior yeae encumbraness apprapriated)

Funul Dalanee End of Year

Downrown

Devclopment/Loan
Funud

Original Final Varianee from

Budger Budget Actual Tinal Budger
50 £1,978 $£2,137 S159
10,802 1,328 1,328 D
10,802 3,306 3,465 159
7,000 74,000 1] 70,000
76,000 70,000 0 70,000
(59,198} {66,694) 3,465 70,159
74,428 75,524 74,428 u
$15,630 §$8,134 578,253 $70,159
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Ciry of Mason

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Budpetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Emilcd Deccmber 31, 2002

Revenucs:
Invesment Earnings

Towl Revenues
Expendituccs:
Current:
Transporeation & Streer Repaic
Tom] Expenditurcs

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditurcs

Other financing sources (uscs);
Transfers (Cut)

Total Other Financing Suurces (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Halance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (includes
prior ycar cncumbrances appropriatcd)

Fund Balance End of Year

Indiana and

Ohio Railroad
Fund

Ocigginal TFinal Variance from

Dhudper Dudger Actusl Final Budger
30 311,196 £11,8056 §$610
0 11,196 11,806 610
295,000 242,153 26,000 216,153
295,000 242,153 26,000 216,153
(295,000) (230,957) {14,194} 216,763
0 (53,000 ¢53,000) ]
0 {53,000) {53,000) 0
{295,000) {283,957) {67,194) 216,763
299,725 299,725 299,725 1)
§4,725 £15,768 $232,531 $216,763
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City of Masun

Schedule of Revenues, Expeslitures and Changes in Fund Baluice
Budger and Acaral (Non-GAAP Budgerary Dasis)
Tlor the Fiseal Year Ended December 31, 24002

Revenues:
Charges for Scrvices
Investmcnt Earnings
Totnl Levenu=
Expendirures:
Deche Service:

Principal Retircnient
Tomal Expenditure:
Necr Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includcs
privr yeir encumbrances appropriarcd)

Fund Balance End of Year

TParks and
Recrestion
TFund
Qriginal Final Variance from
Bulger Budpet Actual TFinal Budpet
$140,000 §164,200 $164,200 30
10,000 14,933 19,823 290
150,000 183,133 184,023 890
400,000 550,000 550,000 ]
444,000 550,000 550,000 0
(250,000} (366,467) (365,977) #90
444,547 444,547 444,547 1]
§194,547 577,680 $78,570 S8%0
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expendinees and Changes in Fund Balance
Bufget amd Actual (Non-GAAP Builgerary Basis)

For the Fiseal Year Ended Decemmber 31, 2002

Bicycle aud
Pedestrian YWay
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budper Budger Acrual Final Budger
Revenues:
Fines, Licenses & Permits s0 $5,291 $5,291 56
Totl Revenues 0 5,291 5,291 0
Expenuliturcs:
Current:

General Governuncut 0 5,291 5,291 [}
Towml Expendimres 0 5,291 5,291 0
Nect Clange in Fund Balance 0 0 0 0
Fund Balance Deginning of Year (include=

prior ycar cocunibrances appropriated} 4] 0 0 0
Fund Balance End of Year S0 $0 $0 $0
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Ralanee
Budger and Actual {(Non-GAAP NHudperary Basis)
Faor the Fiscal Yoar Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues:
Taxes

Toml Revenues
Expenditurcs:
Current:

Public Sajcey
Tatal Ixpendimres

Net Change in Fuixl Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Yoar (includes
Pprior year cncumbrances appropriated)

Fund Bolance Yind of Year

Tolice
K9
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budget Budget Actual Final Budger
S0 S0 50 &0
)] 4] U u
467 167 0 467
467 467 1] 467
(467) (467) 0 167
467 467 4467 0
50 S0 $467 8467
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revennes, Expendituces and Changes in Fumd Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Duilgetiry Basis)

For the Fiseal Year Ended Decenber 31, 2002

Police Crime

Provention
Fund

Qriginal Final Variance from

Budpget Budper Acmal Final Bndpet
Revenucs:
Pincs, Liccuscs & Permits S0 $850 $350 sn
Total Revenus 1] 450 850 0
LExpenditurss:
Current:

Public Safety 1] 300 500 i}
Total Expenditurcs 0 500 500 ]
Net Change in Fund Balance 0 350 350 ]
Fuud Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encumbriices appropriated) 520 520 520 0
Fund Balance Eird of Year 8520 5870 SB70 S0
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Ciry of Mason

Sehedule of Ttevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balauce
Budgcr and Acrual (Non-GAAP Bulgctary Rasis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Dececmber 31, 2002

Drug Law
LEuforcement
Fund

QOriginal Final Variance from

Budpget Budgce Actual LFinal Budger
Revenues:
Fincs, Licenses & Peomics §1,500 81,659 51,659 50
Otlier Revenues 0 1,411 1,461 50
Tawml Revenues 1,500 3,070 3,120 50
Expenditures:
Current:

Public Safety 30,080 30,000 1] 30,000
Towl Expenditures 30,10 30,000 0 30,000
Ner Change in Fund Halanee {218,500) {26,930} 3,120 30,050
Fund Balance Reginning of Year (includs

privr year encumbranees appropriated) 33,392 33,392 33,392 0
Fund Balance End of Year $4,892 §6,462 36,512 $30,050
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expendinices and Changes in Fund Balance
Budpget and Actual (Non-GAAP Bulgetary Basis)

Tor the Piseal Year Ended Deccaber 31, 2002

Law Enfloccement

and Education

Fund

Original Final Variance trom

Budpet Budger Acrtual Final Budget
Revenucs:
Yines, Licenses & Permits £2,000 $1,873 §1,933 860
‘Total Revenues 2,000 1,873 1,933 &0
Expenditures:
Current:

Public Salcey 11,000 11,000 0 11000
Toral Expelitures 11,000 11,000 1] 11,000
Net Change in Fund Balance {9,00D) {9,127) 1,933 11,060
Fund Balance Beginuing of Yo (inclodes

prior year encumbrances appropriaced) 13,005 13,005 13,005 0
Fund Ralance End of Year $4,005 3,878 $14,938 £11,060
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expeanditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgee and Actual {Non-GAAP Budgerary Basis)

For the Fiseal Year Ended December 31, 20002

Indigent
Driver
Fund
Original Final Variance [romn
Budget Budper Actual Final Budpet
Revenues;
Tines, Licenses 8 Permits 515,000 $14,900 $15,280 S380
Total Revenues 15,00 14,500 15,240 280
Expenditurcs:
Current
General Government 95,400 95,000 2,086 92,914
Total Expenditures 95,000 95,008 2,086 92,914
Mct Change in Fund Balace (80,000) (80,100) 13,194 93,294
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {(includes
prior year cocumbrances appropriated) 96,739 96,739 96,739 [
Fund Ralance Lo of Year £16,739 £16,639 510%,933 503,294
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City of Mason

Scliedule of Revenucs, Expendinuces and Changes in Fuid Balance
Buodpet and Acrual (Non-GAAT Budgetary Basis)

For thie Fiseal Year Inded December 31, 2002

Municipal Court
Computee Costs

Fund

Original Tinal Variance trom

Budger Budget Actual Final Budpet
Revenucs:
Fincs, Licenscs 8 Pemmis $50,000 $67,965 §74,571 56,606
Total Revenues 50,000 67,965 74,571 6,606
Lxpendicures:
Current:

General Govermment 200,000 200,478 139,622 60,856
Total Expendinires 200,000 200,478 139,622 60,856
Net Chauge in Fund Balance (150,000) (132,513) {65,051) 67,462
Fund Balanee Beginning of Year (include

prior year enceunbrances appropriated) 223,457 223,457 223,457 4]
Fund Balance End of Year $73,457 590,944 $158,406 $67,462
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Cicy of Mason

Schedule of Rovenues, Expenditures and Clanges in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Nun-GAAP Budgemary Basis)

For the Fiscal Yar Ended December 31, 2002

Municipal Court
Computer Education

Tund

Original Final Variance from

Bulgcr Builpet Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Fincs, Licenses & Permits $15,000 §20,375 $22,577 §2,202
Total Revenues 15,000 20,375 22,577 2,202
Expenditires:
Current:

General Guvermment 95,000 95,000 77,452 17,548
Total Expenditures 95,000 95,000 77,52 17,548
Net Clange in Fund Jalance {80,0{4N) (74,625) (54,875) 19,750
Fund Balance Depinning of Year {includes

prior year encunibrances apprapriated) 91,174 91,174 91,174 0
Fund Balance End of Year $11,174 $16,549 $36,299 £19,750
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenucs, Iixpenditures aml Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Mnunicipal Courr

Improvement
Fund

Criginal Final Variance from

Budpet Budpcr Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Pines, Licenses & Pegniits $45,000 548,169 533,679 %5,510
Tonml Revenues 45,000 48,169 53,679 5,510
Expenditures:
Carrrent:

General Government 50,0 58,700 58,414 286
Total Expenditores 50,000 58,700 58,414 286
NMet Change in Fund Balanee {5,000 {10,531) (4,735) 5,796
Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 61,743 61,783 61,783 0
Fund Balance End of Year $56,783 851,252 $57,048 $5,796
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City of Mason .

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditices and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual {Nou-GAAP Budgetary Dasis)

Tor the Fiseal Year Eaded December 31, 2002

Vehicle
Immebilization Fee
Fund

Qriginal Yinal Variance from

TBudger Budge Acrual Final Budper
Revenues:
Yines, Licenses & Pornlits 5200 S500 8535 8335
Totnl Revenuss 200 540 535 35
Ixpenditures:
Currene:

General Governmicnt 5,400 5,400 0 5,400
Toeal Expenditures 5,400 5,400 0 5,400
Ner Change in Fund Balance {5,200) {4,900) 535 5,435
Fund Dalance Beginuing of Year {inclirdes

prior year encombrances appropriated) 5,480 5,480 5,480 [
Fund Balanee End of Yar £280 $580 $6,015 $5,435
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City of Mason

Schedule of Iievenues, Expeaditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budgerand Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Dasis)

For the Fiscal Year Linbed Decomber 31, 2002

Municipal Court
Probation Services

Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budgce Budper Actual Final Hudper
Revenues:
Fines, Licenses & Permits 50 $60,u49 563,543 55,494
Total Revenues a 60,049 65,543 3,494
Expenditurcs:
Cuerent:

General Government 0 2,050 2,029 21
Total Expenditures 0 2,050 2,029 21
Ner Change in Fund Balance n 57,999 63,514 5,515
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (include

prier year encumbrances appropriated) 0 0 0 0
TFund Balance End of Year S0 857,999 £63,514 $5,515
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Lixpenditures anid Clianges in Fund Balance

Budpet and Actual {(Mon-GAAP Budgerary Basis)
Por the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

TRevenucs:
Clarges for Scrvicess

Toml Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

General Government
Totl Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Umler) Expeaditure

Othee Bnancing sources (uses):
"T'ransfers (Out)

Towml Other Financing Sources (Uscs)
Net Change in Fund Dalance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year {inchedes
prior year encumbrancss appropciated)

Fund Balance End of Year

Subulivision

Inspection
Fund

Criginal Final Variznee froms

Ruxclgrcr Budger Actual Final Budpet
S$200,000 $100,350 $100,500 §150
200,64 100,350 100,500 150
381,847 367,652 247,581 120,071
341,847 367,652 247,581 120,071
{181,847) (267,302} (147,081) 120,221
4] (14,195} (14,195) 0
] {14,195} (14,195) 0
(181,847) (281,497} (161,276) 120,221
436,030 436,030 436,030 0
$254,183 $154,533 $274,754 $120,221
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City of Mason

Schedulc of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actval (Non-GAAP Budgerarcy Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended Decetiber 31, 2002

General Obligation
Nond Tedrement
Fund
Qriginal Tinal Variance from
Budger Bunlgee Actual Final Budget
Revenucs:
Taxes S440,U00 $500,649 $500,689 S0
Total Revenues 440,000 500,680 500,689 0
Ixpendirures:
Debe Service:
Principal Retirentent 230,000 230,000 230,000 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 205,174 205,178 197,195 7,983
Total Expenditures 435,178 435,178 427,195 7,983
Net Change in Funl Balance 4,822 65,511 73,494 7,983
Fund Balance Deginning of ¥eac (inclubcs
prior year cocumbrances appropriated) 224,605 226,605 226,605 0
Fund Balance End of Yeur §231,427 $292,116 $300,099 $7,983
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Ciry of Mason

Schedule of Rievenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual {Non-GAAP Budgetary Dasis)

For the Fiseal Yaar Ended Decomiber 31, 2002

Special Asscssincot
Boud Renrement

Fund
Original Final Variance fram
Budper Budper Actual Fina| Rudgee
Revenues:
Special Asscssmenis $230,000 $201,511 $201,511 St
Investmicnt Earnings 16,261 o 0 0
Toeal Revenues 246,261 201,511 201,511 0
Expenditurcs:
Dbt Service:
Principal Retirement 161,000 161,000 161,000 b}
Interese and Fiseal Charges 86,836 28,382 47,459 y23
Total Expenditiures 247,836 249,382 24R,159 923
Net Chanpe in Fund Ralanec (1,575) {47,871) (46,948) 923
Fund Balanee Beginniog of Year (includes
prior yar cheunbraness appropriated) 19,895 19,895 49,895 ]
Fund Balance End of Year 548,320 52,024 $2,947 $923
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City of Moson

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Dalance
Budger and Aceual (Non-GAAP Budgetry Basis)

Foc the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Tax Inccement
Financing

Fuml

Original Final Variance from

Budpet Budger Actual Final Buidper
Revenucs:
Taxcs $61,375 $56,801 $54,801 80
Total Revenucs 60,375 56,801 56,801 0
Expecaditurcs:
Current:

Transporttion E Street Repair [ 1,000 750 2at

Debr Scrvice:

Interest and Fiscal Charges 31,800 31,800 31,800 0
‘Total Expenditures 31,800 32,800 32,550 250
Eorcess of Revenunes Over (Under) Exponditurcs 24,575 24,001 24,251 250
Other fnancing sources (uscs):

‘Translers In 0 0 15,900 13,900
Total Other Financing Suorees (Uscs) 0 3] 15,900 15,900
Net Change in Fun:l Balance 28,575 24,001 40,151 16,150
Fund Balance Beginning of Year (iuclud=

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 47,176 47,176 £7,176 0
Fuml Balance End of Yer $75,751 871,177 587,327 516,150
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Cirty of Mason

Sclicdule of Revenues, Expenditurcs and Changes in Fund Dalance
Budpet and Acrual (Non-GAAP Budgermry Dasis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues:
Taxes
Investment Earnings

Tomal Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Transportation & Sirccr Repair

Drcbr Secvice:

Intcrest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expeulitires
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Lxpenditures
Other financing soucces (uscs):

Transfers In

Transfers {Our)
Total Othier Financing Souces {(Uscs)

Net Clunge in Fond Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year (jncludes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balanee Evd of Year

Central
Packe TIF
Fund
Original Final Variance from
Budpet Dacdper Actual Final Budget
$31,800 $117,17¢ £123,679 56,509
1] 6,561 6,561 0
31,800 123,731 130,240 6,509
0 191,956 191,893 63
614,375 22,279 20,868 1,411
60,375 214,235 212,761 1,174
{24,575) (90,504) {R2,521) 7,983
] 19,138 14,396 {+,742)
0 {34,796) (34,796) 0
1] {15,658) {20,400} {1,742)
(28,575) {106,162} (102,921} 3,241
400, 869 400,869 400,869 0
§$372,294 $294,707 $297,948 §3,241
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Ciry of Masun

Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Funid Balance
Budget andd Azrual (Non-GAAP Bulgetacy Basis)

For the Fiscaal Year Euded Decanber 31, 2002

Mason Enterprise
I'arke TIF
Tl

Original Final Varianee from

Tudger Budger Actual Final Budpet
Reveuues:
Investment Earnings $0 $1,6v3 51,694 $1
Total Revenucs 0 1,693 1,694 1
Expenditures:
Current:

Transportation & Swect Repair 0 759,456 570,616 188,840

Dbt Sexvice:

Intercst and Fiscal Charpes 0 15,500 15,413 H7
Tota] Expendirures [} 774 U456 586,029 18E,927
Excess of Revenues Over {Uuler) BExpenditures n {773,263) {584,335) L2R,928
Crhier Boancing souress (cs):

Debt Proceeds D 680,000 640,000 0

Transfers 1n 0 141,457 141,575 118

Transfers {Oux) ) {142,000) (141,575) 425
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs) 0 679,457 680,000 543
Net Change in Fund Balanee i] (93,806) 95,665 189,471
Tupd Balance Beginning of Year (includes

prior year encuibranees appropriaced) 0 [{] 1] ]
Fund Balance End of Year 50 ($93,806) 595,665 S5189,471

99



City of Mason

Schedule of Revenwss, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balaee
Budget and Actual (Non: GAATP Budpgctary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Tylecsville
Road Project
Fund

Original Final Variance from

Budpger Budpet Actual Final Budpet
Revenues:
Toxes S0 S0 $0 S0
Torl Revenues n 4] 0 i}
I'xpendimures:
Current:

Transportation 8 Street Repair 1] 970,976 961,826 8,150
Total Expendimres 0 970,976 962,826 8,150
Net Change in Funil Balance 0 {970,976} (Y62,826) 8,150
Fund Balanee B:gimﬁng of Year {includes

prior year encumbrances appropriated) 1,528,941 1,528,941 1,528,941 4]
Fund Balance End of Year §1,528,941 $557,965 $566,115 £8,150
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Ciry of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Exponditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP Buidgecy Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Mason-Moentpomery
Road Improvement

TFund

Original Final Variance from

Bodpet Budget Acrual Final Budget
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S0 534,049 534,049 it
Investment Barnings 0 71,127 72, 4B1 1,354
‘Total Revenues 0 105,176 106,530 1,354
Expenditures:
Current:

Transportativn & Street Repair 1] 1,861,861 1,853,863 7,998
Torl Expenditures 0 1,861,861 1,853,863 7,998
Net Change in Fund Balance a (1,756,685) {1,747,333) 9,352
Fund Balance Beginuing of Year (includes

priur year encumbrances appropriatcd) 2,167,420 2,167 420 2,167,420 }
TFund Balance End of Year . $2,167,420 $410,735 $420,087 §9,352
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Chaoges in Fund Balance
Budget and Aceual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)

For the Fiscal Yar Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues:
Invesoment Eacnings

'Cotal Revenues
Expendimires:
Current:

General Government
Toral Expenditurcs

Excess of Revenues Over {Unuler) Expendinures

Other Anancing sourees (Us=):
Transfrs (Out)

‘Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Clange in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year {include:
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance End of Year

1 & O liridge f Masan-
Montgomery Road Widening

Funil
Original Final Variaee from
JBudgetr Budger Acnual Final Budget
St $4,385 $4,385 $0
0 4,385 4,385 0
1] 0 0 4
0 0 0 0
0 4,385 4,385 0
o (150,100) {150,100) 0
0 {150,100} {150,100} 0
] {145,715} (145,715) 1
145,715 145,715 145,715 1]
$145,715 50 50 50
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Ciry of Mason

Scliedule of Revenucss, Expendinices and Changes in Fund Balace
Nudget and Actual (Non-GAAT Buidgetary Basis)

Tor the Fiseal Year Eled December 31, 2002

Revenues:
Invotment Earnings

Total Revenues
Expenditurcs:
GCurrent:
General Goverminent

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement

Intcrest and Fiscal Chacges
Tatal Expendimiecs

Excess of Revenues Over (Unider) Expendituces

Other Anancing sources {uses):
Transfers (Out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Ner Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginoing af Year (includes
prior year encumbrances apropriated)

Fund Balanee Lkl of Year

Governnient
Center
Fund
Original Final Vagance from
Budpet Dhudper Actual Final Budpct
0 §$161,924 $165,901 33,977
[ 161,924 165,901 3,977
U 2,601,763 2,269,483 332,280
565,000 1,130,000 565,000 565,000
1,106,798 1,966,798 BG0,000 1,106,798
1,671,798 5,698,561 3,694,483 2,004,078
{1,671,798) (5,536,637) {3,528,582) 2,008,055
N (1,671,794) {1,671,794) 1]
0 (1,671,798) (1,671,798) U
{1,671,798) {7,208,435) {5,200,380) 2,008,055
5,214,996 5,214,996 5,214,996 4]
3,543,198 {81,993,439) 14,616 §2,018,055
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City of Mason

Schedule of Revenurs, Expendimures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budger and Actual (Non-GAAP LBudgemary Basis)

For the Fiscal Year Buded December 31, 2002

Revenues:
Investncit Earnings

Toml Revenucs

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Debt Senvice:
Principal Retiteiicnt
Intcrest ond Fiscal Charges

Toml Expenditures
Excoss of Revenues Over (Under) Expouditures
Otlier financing sources (uscs):
Transfers In
Transfers {Oux)
Total Odier Financing Source: (Uscs)

Ner Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance Beginning of Year {includes
prior year encumbrances appropriated)

Fund Balance Eod of Year

Government Ceiirer

Reserve
TFond

Original Final Variance from

Rudper Budper Actual Final Budger
50 £93,576 $93,577 51
] 93,576 93,577 1
22,000,410 20,879,995 14,202,563 6,587,432
0 565,000 565,000 0
1) 1,106,798 1,106,798 0
22,000,000 22,551,793 15,964,361 6,587,432
{22,000,000) {22,458,217) (15,870,784) 6,587,433
n 533,922 1,673,404 1,11y 482
0 {1,606) {1,606) 0
] 552,316 1,671,794 £,119,482
(22,000,000 (21,905,901} (14,198,984) 7,706,915
19,688,220 19,688,220 19,648,220 0
{$2,311,780) ($2,217,681) 85,489,234 §7,706,915
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Cily of Mason

Table é
Special Assessment Billings and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Current Current Ralio ol

Tax Assessmenls Assessmenls Collectlon

Ycar Blilings Collected Ta Amount Billed
1992 §329,359 £321,874 97.73%
1993 317,925 303,815 95.56%
1994 278,647 275,380 98.83%
1995 274,487 256,455 93.43%
1996 272,394 260,503 05.63%
1957 233,472 195,326 831.30%
1998 258,506 218,038 84.35%
1995 228,615 199,333 87.19%
2000 213,73% 201,300 94_18%
2001 188,571 170,041 90.17%

Source: Warren Counly Auditor's Olfice

110



“JUBLNTLIWOS (EILUSWIIIA0T 1Ia IGIP UALUSTISSY [e190dg 10} SI3UR{EQ PURY 3314195 1GIP APN[DUT 10U 530 {£)

JUIWILIOD [EUIUILDAOR YILM 13D IUIWTSISS Y |E1p3dg 10 smop] ualedia oy pucq Ipn|aUL 10U 520 (D

p a|qeL WOl anjTA Passassy (1)

ol 2€00 000'0£2 0 000'0ET DI5'95L'LPE ol10'IT 2002
ol %00 000'0T2 0 000072 6ZLTTS'E6L 91022 1002
0§ %E0°0 000'S12 0 00051z 01+'980'C1L 910'z 0007
11 %00 #EF 90T 995'8 000's1T L6£'975°T88 00561 6661
zZl %000 PEQ'GLI 996'5T 000'50Z £oL'LES'DSY 005°L1 8661
91 %900 p6S'PeT 50p°0¢ 000552 GEU'6PLEOY £98'¢| LB61
£z 2A1 10 £6LP1E L0202 000'¢KE SLT'LOL'PIE 99¢'p1 9661
62 %bl'0 pe'Tst 1y Wi 00008 GB6'CPT'08T PriEl £661
¥E %91'0 LOB"00F £61°61 000'02F SR1'FZ595Z S64'21 661
LES %170 010'ZrPs 066'L1S 000'09bS LEQ'PEP'VITS L8T'El £661
o)jdc mpes 1924 (£) pung 93|as3g (Dpa (1yonpep wopjndog FT2YY

I3 W —uUmmuww{_ =) ] ﬂuﬂnoﬂ (5597 pPapooyg Uuqﬂnwﬁ_ 1ta519

prpuog 1N 192qQ papuag e300 _n._unuuu
PN J0 ODEY PN

IE9 A [EOS1] UL 1V
riider) 19 199 PIPUOG 19N PUE AT A PISSISSY OL

102(] papuog [BLAU0) 1N JO OllEY
L2988

UDSER JO AN

111



City of Mason

Table 8
Computalion Of Legal Debt Margin
For The Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

Total Debl Unvoted Debl

MNet Assessed Valualion $847,756,510 $847.756,510
Legal Debt Limitation {(3) (1) 10.50% 5.50%
Legal Debt Limitation (8) {1) 29,014,434 46,626,608
Applicable City Debt Questanding (2) 6,690,000 6,690,000

Less: Applicable Debt Service Fund Amounts (3) 302,523 302,523

Net Indebledness Subjeet ta Limitation £6,387.477 £6,387,477

mmmwmﬂmww
Source: City of Mason, Ohio, Departmenl of Tinance
(1) Direct Debt Limitation Based Upon Section |33, The Uniform Bond Act af the Ohio Revised Cade.

(2) Cily Debt Quistanding Includes Non Seli-Supporting General Obligation Noles and Bonds Only.
Enterprise Debt is Not Considered in the Computation of the Legal Debi Margin.

(3} Does not include debl scrvice fund balances for Special Asscssment debt with governmental
commitmeni.
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City of Mason

Table 9
Computation of Dircel and Overlapping Debt
For The Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2002

e T e e e e e e ey

Net General Percenlage Amount

Obligalions Applicable Applicable

Bonded Debl o to

Oulstanding City Clty
City of Mason $12,675,000 100.00% 512,675,000
Warren County 4,010,870 20.46% 820,624
Lebanon City School District 49,999,099 0.29% 145,000
Mason City School Dislricl 120,710,000 66.43% 80,187,653
Kings Local School District 17,388,182 16.315% 6,112,968
Great Oaks Career Cenler School District 7,130,000 4.57% 325,841

Tolal: $100,267,086

Source; Warren County Audilor’s Office.
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Cily of Mason

Table t1
Property Valuc, Construction and Bank Deposils
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Bullding Permits

Talal Total Real Property
Flscal Permits Estlmmated Yalue Assessed Banking Activity
Year Issued (1) of Dulldinps {I) Value (2) Bank Deblts (3)
1993 356 £57,635,020 $155,440,520 £401,519
1994 01 49,015,494 193,789,870 410,258
1995 2904 62,415,454 217,285,530 447,918
1996 447 74,115,054 246,729,100 465,584
1997 525 80,685,240 324,890,600 523,505
1998 513 111,291,583 387,938,790 521,795
1999 537 108,371,590 448,944,160 533,873
2000 413 95,176,832 576,039,580 548,623
2001 444 172,221,930 633,752,330 618,781
2002 367 83,056,255 683,142,740 660,464

(1) City of Mason, Ohio, Building Inspection Department

(2} Assessed Yalue [rom Table 4

(3) Federal Reserve Bank Of Cleveland
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Cily of Mason

Tablc 13
Principal Taxpayers
December 31, 2002

Percentage QI
Total Asscssed
VYaluatlon

4.34%
1.13%
2.64%
1.74%
1.07%
1.05%
091%
0.72%
0.68%
0.63%
B2.49%

Assessed Valuation
For Fiscal Year
Taxpaycr 2002

Kings [sland Company £36,823,440
Procter & Gamble 11,597,200
Mitsubishi Electric 22,359,780
UBE Aulomotive 14,713,620
Cincinnali Gas & Elcclric 9,090,410
Cinats Corporation No.2 8,873,400
Makino Incorporated 7,747,120
Maoson Christian ¥illage 6,069,390
Cintas Sales Corparation 5.802,540
Drees Company 5,381,330
Al Olhers 699,298,280
Total Assesscd Veluation 5847,756,510

Source: Warren County Auditor's Oflice
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City of Mason

Table 15
Demographic Statistics
December 31, 2002

Population for the

Last Ten Years 1993 12,287
1994 12,495
1995 13,244
1996 14,266
1997 15,863
1998 17,501
199% 19,500
2000 22,016
2001 22,016
2002 22,016

School Enrollment

for the Lasl Ten Years 1933 2,866
1994 3,091
1995 3,420
1996 3,845
1997 4,371
1993 5,364
1999 6,100
2000 6,711
2001 7411
2002 8,080

Unemployment Rate for

the Last Ten Years* 1993 6.00%
1994 4.90%
1995 3.30%
1996 3.70%
1997 3.20%
1998 2.60%
1999 3.00%
2000 3.80%
2001 3.30%
2002 4.00%

= T T e e e ]

Source: City of Mason, Ohio, Community Development Department

“ Information is only available for Warren County
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

CITY OF MASON

WARREN COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
SEPTEMBER 23, 2003
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